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Foreword from the Directors

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is our pleasure to present the Fifth Annual Report

together with

the Audited Statement of Accounts

of SAMUNNATI

FINANCIAL

INTERMEDIATION & SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) for the year ended March

31, 2019.

Financial Performance

The summarized consolidated results of your Company are given in the table below.

(Rupees in INR)

Particulars

Year ended 31 March,
2019

Year ended 31%t March
2018*

Revenue from Operations (A)

4,238,391,714

1,366,366,552

Other Income (B)

60,026,459

36,383,883

Total Income (A+B)

4,298,418,173

1,402,750,435

Expenditure

(Including Interest & Depreciation)

4,206,555,758

1,435,753,479

Profit / (Loss)before Tax 91,862,415 (33,003,044)
Less: Tax expenses:

1. Current tax 5,721,976

2. Deferred tax

Profit/ (Loss) after tax 86,140,439 (33,003,044)

* previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.
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The standalone results of your Company are given in the table below.

(Rupees in INR)

Particulars Year ended 31 March, | Year ended 31% March
2019 2018*

Revenue from Operations (A) 808,841,461 336,949,610

Other Income (B) 46,833,691 31,043,150

Total Income (A+B) 855,675,152 367,992,760

Expenditure 755 483 861

(Including Interest & T 396,943,283

Depreciation)

Profit / (Loss)before Tax 100,191,291 (28,950,523)

Less: Tax expenses:

1. Current tax 2,721,976

2. Deferred tax -

Profit/ (Loss) after tax 94,469,315 (28,950,523)

*previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.

The year under review is one of the important year as company has become a Systemically

Important NBFC.

Summary of Operations

e Company achieved 92.6% growth in AUM which has gone up by Rs. 226.24 Cr to Rs.
470.54 Cr from Rs.244.30 Cr in previous year.
e Revenue from operations grew by Rs. 47.19 Cr (140.1%) to Rs. 80.88 Cr from Rs.

33.69 Cr.

e Interest Income grew substantially by Rs. 44.71 Cr (244%.1) to Rs. INR 75.79 Cr

from INR 31.08 Cr.

e Company registered its first annual profit of INR 9.45 Cr as against loss of Rs. 2.90
Cr in corresponding previous year.

e During the year company could raise debt of Rs. 312.51 Cr from Indian Banks,
NBFCs and foreign investors despite adverse financial market conditions.
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Performance of Subsidiary: -

e Samunnati Agro Solutions Pvt. Ltd is a 100% subsidiary of the Company which deals
in trading of agro commodities grew substantially by Rs. 194.3 Cr (228%) to Rs.
345.97 Cr from Rs. 151.7 Cr.

e EBITDA margins by Rs. 4.45 Cr (132.8%) to Rs. 7.80 Cr from Rs. 3.35 Cr.

Company Overview

Incorporated in 2014 as a private limited Company in Chennai, Samunnati is a non-banking
financial company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of India. Samunnati is a specialized
Agri Value Chain enabler that provides innovative and customized financial and non-
financial solutions. The Company was started by Anil Kumar SG who began his career as a
banker and has spent over 27 years in the rural & retail financial services, microfinance,
and financial inclusion sectors.

Samunnati leverages on the ‘social capital’ and ‘trade capital’ in buyer-seller relationships
via Samunnati Aggregators', through non-traditional sourcing, risk assessment, and
mitigation, aided by cutting edge technology, an experienced management team with
deep domain expertise thereby building a quality business that is sustainable and results in
inclusive growth. These values are non-negotiable and embedded in the genetic code of
the Company and demonstrated in the way the Company’s processes operate.

With an aim to offer holistic, suitable solutions to the agri-value chain players, Samunnati
Agro Solutions Private Limited (“Samunnati Agro”) was incorporated on 14" October 2016
as a 100% subsidiary of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited.
Samunnati Agro offers trade facilities to agri-value chain players as part of the internal
value chain finance.

With an institutionalized framework in place, the Company and its subsidiary is present
across 14 states with more than 271 employees.

Background on Agricultural Sector and Financing in India

Around 55% of Indians derive their livelihood from agriculture, though its contribution to
the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) of the country is less than 15%. Agricultural growth has
long been recognised as an important instrument for poverty reduction. Studies have
shown that every 1% growth in per capita agricultural GDP led to 1.61% growth in the
incomes of the poorest 20% of the population.

Challenges & Gaps in Agriculture Financing

Agriculture and agriculture-based enterprises are unlike any other businesses, entailing
risks related to production, weather, prices and policy. This coupled with lack of financial
data about agribusinesses and smallholder farmers makes it difficult to adopt conventional
methods of credit assessment for financial institutions. Most plain vanilla financial

! Samunnati Aggregators are key partners who possess trade capital and social capital and
whose interests are aligned with that of Samunnati. They give Samunnati access to
potential clients with social capital and trade capital and also substantially participate in
the risks in dealing with such clients.
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products are ill-suited to the cash flow requirements of an agribusiness, which is often
cyclical in nature and varies from crop to crop and region to region.

Moreover, while there has been large-scale government focus on agriculture sector and
priority sector lending norms in India, both microfinance institutions and banks have been
unable to adequately meet the financial needs of agricultural value chain players.

To ensure a sustainable and vibrant agricultural ecosystem, government policies and
financial interventions need to be augmented and facilitated by other non-financial
services, such as advisory services and market linkages. Availability of these services will
enable development across the Agriculture value chain.

Samunnati’s Approach to Agriculture Financing

In addition to financial interventions, Samunnati offers co-financial and non-financial
services to its customers. Samunnati follows AMLA (Aggregation, Market Linkage and
Advisory Services) approach to provide holistic solutions to its customers.

Material Changes and Commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
Company:

Your Company has not made any significant material changes and commitments during the
financial year 2018-2019.

Dividend

Your Directors do not recommend for any dividend for the year under review.

Transfer to reserves:

Your Company has transferred 1.89 crore (20% of PAT) to statutory reserve as required u/s
45-1C of Reserve Bank of India Act of 1934.

Change in the nature of business, if any:

There were no changes in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year
2018-19.

Non - Acceptance of Deposits

Your Company has not accepted any public deposits during the financial year 2018- 19.

Internal financial control over financial reporting:

The internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are
commensurate with the size and nature of business of the Company. The Company
undertook an IFC audit to ensure adequacy of internal financial controls.
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Changes to Share Capital, if any:

During the year under review, there was no change in the Authorised Capital and Paid-up
Capital of the Company.

The details of the opening and closing Authorized and Paid-up capital of the Company is
mentioned below:

Particulars Opening Closing
Authorized Capital (INR) INR 2,00,00,000/ - INR 2,00,00,000/ -
Paid Up Capital (INR) INR 15,876,160/ - INR 15,876,160/ -

Disclosure Regarding Issue of Equity Shares with Differential Rights/ Sweat Equity
Shares:

The Company has not issued any Equity Shares with differential rights or Sweat Equity
Shares during the financial year 2018-19.

Disclosure Regarding Issue of Employee Stock Options / Sweat Equity Shares:

The Company currently administers an Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) constituted in
2015. During the year, the Board had approved the Amended Employee Stock Option Plan
2018 at their meeting held on 21* June 2018 and the same was also approved by the
Shareholders at their Meeting held on 25" July 2018. The ESOP was introduced with an
intention to motivate employees to contribute to the growth and profitability of the
Company; as well as to create a sense of ownership and participation amongst the
employees.

In addition to the above, the Company administers a Management Stock Option Plan
(MSOP) constituted in 2017 to provide wealth creation opportunities to the promoter of
the Company. It is to be noted that the Company is a registered startup and has been
issued a certificate of recognition as a ‘startup’ by the Government of India, with
registration number DIPP6002. Further, as per applicable law (Rule 12(1), Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014), a startup is permitted to issue employee
stock options to its promoter.

During the year, no Options were exercised by the Participants.

Disclosures under Rule 12(9) (a) to (i) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures)
Rules, 2014 is as below:

ESOP 2015 &
Particulars MSOP 2017
Outstanding Options at the beginning of the year 81,783
Add Additional Allotment to Pool in FY 18-19 (MSOP) -
Options Granted (in 18-19) 9,025
Options Vested in 18-19 36,599
Options Exercised in 18-19 Nil
Total No. of Shares arising as a result of exercise of Option in 18-19 Nil
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Options Lapsed 180
Exercise Price (Weighted) Nil
Variation of terms of options Nil
Money realised by exercise of Options Nil
Total No. of Options in force as on 31st Mar 2019 72,938

Employee wise details of options granted to; -

(1) key managerial personnel;

Disclosed under
Annexure |- MGT
9

(2) any other employee who has been granted options in any one | Nil
year amounting to five percent or more of options granted
during that year

(3) identified employees who were granted option, during any one | Nil

year, equal to or exceeding one percent of the issued capital
(excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the
company at the time of grant;

Capital Adequacy

The Company’s Capital Adequacy stood at 34.28% within the regulatory limits applicable

for NBFC- ND-SI.

Extract of the Annual Return

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, extract of annual return in Form

MGT 9 is annexed as Annexure |.
Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

S Name of the Director DIN Category Changes during
No. the year, if any
1. Mr Narasimhan | 01501266 Independent Nil
Srinivasan Director,
2. Mr Sunil Gulati 00016990 Independent Nil
Director
3. Dr Venkatesh Tagat 02728441 Independent Appointed as
Director Additional
Director-
Independent on
18" September
2018
4, Mr Mahendran | 00121640 Nominee Nil
Balachandran Director
5. Ms Jyotsna Krishnan 06572288 Nominee Nil
Director
6. Mr Akshay Dua 03144843 Nominee Nil
Director
7. Mr Anil Kumar S G 01189011 Director & CEO Nil
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8. Mr Gurunath | 02799586 Wholetime Nil
Neelamani Director

a. Mr. Niranjan Chandrashekar, was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company,
with effect from 21°* June 2018.

b. Dr. Venkatesh Tagat was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with
effect from 18" September 2018.

c.Mr. Nitin Chaudhary was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company
with effect from 18" September 2018.

Details of meetings of the Board

The Directors of the Company met 6 (Six) times during the financial year 2018-2019.

BOARD MEETINGS
No. of Directors who
S. No Date of Meeting attended the
meeting
1 23" April 2018 7/7
2 21°" June 2018 6/7
3 18™ September 2018 6/7
4 3" December 2018 8/8
5 14™ February 2019 8/8
6 2" March 2019 5/8

List of Committees

During the year under review the Company had constituted the Risk Management
Committee, Stakeholder Relationship Committee and IT Strategy Committee at the Board
Meeting held on 18 September 2018.

Further, the Board of Directors had re-constituted the Audit Committee at the Board
Meeting held on 18 September 2018.

The Constitution of the Committees are as below: -

1. Audit Committee:

The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

a) Mr. Sunil Gulati - Chairman

b) Mr. N Srinivasan - Member

c) Mr. Akshay Dua - Member

d) Permanent Invitee - Mr. Anil Kumar S G - CEO
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2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows:

a) Mr. N Srinivasan - Chairman
b) Mr. Sunil Gulati - Member
c) Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan - Member
d) Mr.S G Anil Kumar - Member

3. Risk Management Committee:

The Composition of the Risk Management Committee is as follows:

Mr. Sunil Gulati-Chairman

Mr. N. Srinivasan-Member

Mr. Akshay Dua-Member

Mr. S G Anil Kumar-Member

Mr. N.Gurunath-Member

) Chief Risk Officer of Samunnati - Member

DT O N T
—_——_—— - —

)

4. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as follows:
a) Dr. Venkatesh Tagat-Chairperson
b) Mr. S G Anil Kumar-Member
c) Mr. N Gurunath-Member

5. IT Strategy Committee

The Composition of the IT Strategy Committee is as follows:

a) Mr. Sunil Gulati-Chairperson

b) Mr. S G Anil Kumar-Member

c) Mr. N Gurunath-Member

d) Mr. Nitin Chaudhary-Chief Technology Officer

e) Mr. Dhanasekaran Sivaraj-Chief Information Officer

Number of Committee meetings

During 2018-19, the following Committee meetings were held: -

AUDIT COMMITTEE
No. of Directors who

S. No Date of Meeting attended the
meeting

1 23™ April 2018 4/4

2 21% June 2018 4/4

3 18™ September 2018 4/4

4 3" December 2018 3/3

5 13™ February 2019 2/3
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1 23" April 2018 4/4
2 21° June 2018 4/4
3 18™ September 2018 3/4
4 3" December 2018 4/4
5 13™ February 2019 4/4

1 3" December 2018 5/5
13" February 2019 4/5

3" December 2018
2 14™ February 2019 3/3

13" February 2019

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186:

Not applicable as the Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company.

Regulatory Compliance

The Company has complied with all the mandatory regulatory compliances as required
under the Reserve Bank of India guidelines, the Companies Act, various tax statutes and
other regulatory bodies.
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Related party transactions

Details of contracts or arrangements with related parties as per Section 188(1) of the
Companies Act 2013 for the financial year 2018-19 are given in form AOC 2 as Annexure
.

Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies

The Company has a wholly owned subsidiary, Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited
which is offering trading facilities to Agri value chain players. The information as required
under the first provision to Sub-Section (3) of Section 129 is given in Form AOC- 1 in
Annexure Il.

Details of Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals: Nil

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 do not apply to the Company for
the FY 2018-19. However, as part of its business strategy, Samunnati contributes to the
development of a sustainable, agriculture and livestock industry by providing knowledge,
advisory services, supporting initiatives and forming partnerships that make the
agriculture value chains stronger.

Credit rating

During the year under review, Rating Agencies reaffirmed / issued ratings to the Company,
as under:

Rating agency Rating
ICRA BBB- (Stable)
CARE BBB- (Stable)

Declaration from Independent Directors:

The Independent Directors of the Company have submitted a declaration as required under
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, stating that they meet the criteria of independence
as provided in section 149(6). In the opinion of the Board, the independent directors fulfils
the conditions specified in the Act and the Rules made thereunder for appointment as
Independent Director and confirm that they are independent of the Management.

Particulars of Employees:

The Company has the following employees whose details to be disclosed as required under
Section 197(12) of the act read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel Rules, 2014.

11
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SN | Name Designati | Remuneratio | Nature | qualifications | percentage last
o |and on nin Rs. of and of equity employment
Age of Employ | experience shares held held by such
the ment of the by the employee
Employ and employee; employee of | before
ee date of the total joining the
comme equity company
ncemen
t of
Employ
ment
1 SG Anil | CEO INR1,23,21,99 | Full Master’s in CEO -
Kumar - 6/-p.a. time, management, | 50.47% Pudhuaaru
47 23" MBA, BA, Financial
Years June Banker with Services Pvt
2014 Over 27 Ltd
years’
experience

Receipt of any Commission by MD/WTD from a Company or for receipt of
Commission/Remuneration from its Holding or Subsidiary:

The Company’s Directors have not received any commission/ remuneration from the
subsidiary Company.

Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
& Redressal) Act, 2013:

Your Company believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every
individual and endeavors to create and provide an environment that is free from
discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.

During the year under review, your company has not received any complaints pertaining to
sexual harassment.

Statutory Auditors, their Report and Notes to Financial Statements

In the first Annual General Meeting held on 30" September 2015, M/s. Walker, Chandiok &
Co, LLP, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 001076N/N500013), were appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five (5) years i.e., till the financial year
ending on 31" March 2020. Ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors is being
sought from the members of the Company at the ensuing AGM.

Further, the report of the Statutory Auditors along with notes to Schedules is enclosed to
this report. The observations made in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory, contain no
qualification, reservations, adverse remarks and disclaimers and therefore do not call for
any further comments.

12
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Details of Frauds Reported by the Statutory Auditors:

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported
any fraud as required under Section 143(12) of the CA 2013.

Cost Auditor and Cost Audit Report:

Your Company did not fall under the ambit of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013
during the year under review.

Secretarial Audit and Secretarial Audit Report:

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Act, the Board of Directors had appointed M/s. BP &
Associates, Company Secretaries, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for
the FY 2018-19. The Secretarial Audit Report in the prescribed form MR-3, is annexed as
Annexure V.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by M/s.
BP & Associates in their Secretarial Audit Report dated May 22" ,2019.

Compliance with the Secretarial Standards

The Directors of the Company certify that the Company has complied with the Secretarial
Standards issued by The Institute of Company secretaries of India.

Disclosure on establishment of vigil mechanism

The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs of its constituents in a fair and
transparent manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity
and ethical behavior. The Company has implemented a vigil mechanism to provide a
framework for the Company’s employees and Directors to promote responsible and secure
whistle blowing.

Management discussion and analysis report

a. Industry structure and developments

Around 55% of Indians derive their livelihood from agriculture, though its contribution to
the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) of the country is less than 15%. Agricultural growth has
long been recognised as an important instrument for poverty reduction. Studies have
shown that every 1% growth in per capita agricultural GDP led to 1.61% growth in the
incomes of the poorest 20% of the population.

b. Opportunities & Threats

Agriculture and agriculture-based enterprises are unlike any other businesses, entailing
risks related to production, weather, prices and policy. This coupled with lack of financial
data about agribusinesses and smallholder farmers makes it difficult to adopt conventional
methods of credit assessment for financial institutions. Most plain vanilla financial
products are ill-suited to the cash flow requirements of an agribusiness, which is often
cyclical in nature and varies from crop to crop and region to region.

13
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Moreover, while there has been large-scale government focus on agriculture sector and
priority sector lending norms in India, both microfinance institutions and banks have been
unable to adequately meet the financial needs of agricultural value chain players.

To ensure a sustainable and vibrant agricultural ecosystem, government policies and
financial interventions need to be augmented and facilitated by other non-financial
services, such as advisory services and market linkages. Availability of these services will
enable development across the Agriculture value chain.

c.Product wise or sector wise performance of the company

Agri-Enterprises and Community Based Organisations (CBOs)
Samunnati posted a strong growth in FY’19 over the previous year with disbursements
doubled with an outreach to over 450+CBOs and Agri-Enterprises compared to 250 CBOs
and AEs in FY’18. The AUM has grown from INR 244 Cr to INR 471Cr reflecting a stellar
growth of over 92.6% with disbursements of about INR 922 Cr.

Geographical diversification has been one of the key focus and at portfolio level Tamil
Nadu constitutes about 48% as of Mar’19 compared to 54% in last year. Karnataka,
Maharashtra, Gujarat & Madhya Pradesh were major growth drivers during the year.

New clients added during this year have contributed 45% in the portfolio as on Mar-19
majorly driven by Agri-Enterprises.

Farmer Producer Organisations (FPOs)

FPO engagement team was formed as a new vertical to enable social, financial and
technical capacities of small holders who are associated with Farmer producer
organisations.

Financial Performance

In FY 2018-19, the total disbursements to FPOs were INR 56.14Cr contributing to an AUM of
INR 23.65 as of March 31, 2019

New Initiatives

Samunnati forged some interesting partnerships with tech-based entities like WRMS and
Cropln on a pilot basis. They facilitated FPOs to take up activities like farmer mapping,
geo tagging, growth and productivity assessment, crop insurance etc. to understand the
mitigation of production risk through technology.

The team also built capacity of five FPOs located in Karnataka and Maharashtra.
Market Linkages & Technical Assistance

Under bill to ship to model, 52 FPOs from 8 states were facilitated to trade with 16 large
scale buyers. Total value of the trade was INR 11.3 crores.

In collaboration with IIHR (Indian Institute of Horticulture Research) and NIRD (National
Institute of Rural Development), Samunnati trained 21 FPOs on AMLA solutions.

14
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District level workshops were organized in six states to take up Focus Group Discussions
with 50+ FPOs.

Incubation

Samunnati Finance has an incubation team that pilots and tests a number of financial
solutions as a part of its value chain finance model. In FY 2018-19, Samunnati Finance
piloted the receivable finance solution to a Hyderabad-based company, that provides
‘irrigation as a service’. This enabled the irrigation company to manage their vendor
payments & operational expenses in better way. Another financial solution incubated was
through funding a start-up engaged as a marketplace for dry fruit & commodities with a
zero-inventory model & scalability potential.

Samunnati Finance also extended medium term loans for capital expenditure & working
capital to a set of micro-entrepreneurs under the pilot program. The agri-entrepreneurs
are trained by a leading MNC Foundation engaged in farm input business. This
entrepreneurs s have proved themselves as a viable channel for delivering value to small &
marginal farmers across the country and can in process, generate livelihood for
themselves.

Another interesting pilot program implemented was for an Uttar Pradesh-based early stage
enterprise that is engaged in aggregation of input requirements & custom hiring services
to small farmers. Samunnati has extended a short-term loan to the Company to purchase
inputs in bulk and supply the same to the farmers on credit. The pilot will be scaled
gradually subject to the credit behaviour & collection efficiency of the client.

An Indore-based marketplace engaged in digitizing the Farm Input supply chain and
aggregating the input demands of retailers along with credit facilitation has onboarded a
large number of retailers across the state of Madhya Pradesh and established tie-ups with
farm input manufacturers. Samunnati has extended a short-term working capital loan to
the Company to make advance booking of farm inputs. This has enabled the platform to
attract its retailers by passing on the advance discount. A successful pilot will enable to
scale the product and introduce multiple niche solutions for Agri Input supply chain
players.

Research, Analysis & Market Penetration (RAMP)

The Research Analysis and Market Penetration (RAMP) team was set up with the primary
objective to build in-house market intelligence on agricultural and allied commodities for
informed decision making. The team provides market insights and state level reports to
various business verticals within Samunnati to strengthen the internal capacities on
agricultural value chain as well as financing models. The team became fully operational in
January 2019.

Samunnati Associates

Samunnati Associates (SA) is a new business vertical that leverages on the power of
networking. It aims at building quality portfolio through prominent network actors in the
banking industry, called Samunnati Associates. The model was envisioned in early April
2018 and started functioning as pilot in the second quarter of the FY 2018-19. Samunnati
has identified and enrolled over 168SAs from across the country who have contributed
about INR 62 crores to the business, The model has enabled us to explore new markets and

15



SAMUNNATI FINANCIAL INTERMEDIATION & SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U65990TN2014PTC096252
REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS: BAID HI TECH PARK, 8TH FLOOR, NO 129 B, EAST COAST ROAD,
THIRUVANMIYUR, CHENNAI - 600 041, TAMIL NADU
Website: www.samfin.in E-mail:secretarial@samunnati.com Phone: 044-66762400

penetrate existing value chains. With positive pilot results and emerging team quality, SA
model is expected to make generous contributions to the projected business figures.

Collection team

Samunnati adopts a robust collection mechanism where collection activities are performed
when customers have an overdue on their repayment obligation. The Company’s Collection
Policy is built around dignity and respect to customers. The policy has been built on
courtesy, fair treatment and persuasion. Samunnati believes in following fair practices on
collection of dues and repossession of security and thereby fostering customer confidence
and long-term relationship.

In line with the policy, the objective is to start collection activities at very early stages of
the account being overdue and persuade the customer to repay the overdue amount
thereby prevent the customer from going into a state of default.

d.Outlook

The company looks forward to drive a positive growth across all the business segments and
other allied functions for the year ahead. The portfolio growth will be majorly driven by
Agriculture enterprises and trading verticals. These verticals will explore opportunities
through Samunnati Associates, e-markets modules and strong network of institutional
buyers. Pilots with various enterprises under incubation, will be the prospective models to
scale up the business figures and introduce various niche solutions for Agri and allied
sectors.

The company would aim to generate a dedicated portfolio under sustainable agriculture
and FPO vertical utilizing the credit guarantees by DFIs and Foundations respectively. Risk
management will continue to remain an integral part and would be further strengthened by
setting up robust monitoring and NPA management strategy. The company will continue to
take precautionary measures against market events which impact the liquidity and support
business requirements.

Moving towards data driven decision making, the company would be digitizing the data
source across all the functions. To foster Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) in the
company, Samunnati foundation is envisioned to be set up as one of the arms of Samunnati
Financial Intermediation & Service Private Limited.

e. Risks & Concerns

The Company has a Risk Management and Internal Control process to identify, assess,
monitor and manage the credit and operational risks associated with the business, in
accordance with well-defined procedures. Credit Committee also approves new products
and value chains and to reviews sector developments that may impact the Company.

Management Committees have been constituted to periodically review the portfolio quality
and overdues.
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Approaches to risk management

Account acquisition - This involves careful selection of customers based on its defined
credit policy. Clear definition of prudential norms in terms of client wise exposures, sector
wise exposures are defined and monitored through a strong governance mechanism

Account management - Considering the nature of customers who are repeat borrowers in
nature under revolving credit facility, the account management is done through periodic
visits to ascertain end usage of funds, assess early warning signals and ensure completion of
post sanction covenants if any

Portfolio management - Sound NPA management strategy has been put in place to ensure
the risk appetite as defined by the board are adhered to . Portfolio triggers and
mechanisms to ensure fresh slippages are well within the desired levels have been put in
place.

Samunnati has introduced Overdue Monitoring & follow up mechanism through a weekly
Overdue Committee Meeting at HO attended by Heads of Credit, Business and collection.
Action plans are deliberated, acted upon and tracked to ensure health of the portfolio is
within acceptable standards. Legal actions wherever required are being initiated.

The Company keeps the Board informed periodically of the significant risks associated with
the business of the Company and the various risk identification and mitigation processes
put in place by the management.

Internal control systems & their adequacy

The internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are
commensurate with the size and nature of business of the Company. The Company
undertook an IFC audit to ensure adequacy of internal financial controls.

a. Discussion on financial performance with reference to operational
performance (Refer to Section on Financial Performance)

b. Material developments in Human resource/Industrial relationship front,
including number of people employed.

Samunnati is very conscious of its vision to deliver quality business that is sustainable and
results in inclusive growth. The Company achieves this vision through our most important
asset, our employees. In line with this, Samunnati focuses on the learning and
development to enhance employees’ behavioural as well as technical competencies.

As on 31°*March’19, Samunnati Finance had a total employee strength of 231.
Internal Audit

In accordance with the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company
has appointed an Internal Auditor who reports to the Audit Committee of the Company.
Internal Audit Reports are submitted to the Audit Committee which reviews the audit
reports and suggests necessary action.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act 2013, the Directors, based on the
representations received from the operating management after due enquiry, confirm that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 March
2019, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b) They have, in the selection of the accounting policies, consulted the Statutory
Auditors and have applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent to give a true and fair view of the of the
Company as at 31° March 2019 and of the profit and loss of the Company for that
period;

c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge
and ability for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) The Board of Directors have laid down internal Financial Controls to be followed
by the Company and that such internal financial control are adequate and were
operating effectively.

f) The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption

In term of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014, requires the disclosure of particulars regarding conservation of
Energy and Technology Absorption & Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo.

Samunnati has taken up the following initiatives towards energy conservation and
technology absorption:

e linking buyers and sellers using online market linkage platforms like NCDEX and
reducing the multiple movements of the produce thereby reducing
transportation costs and carbon emissions.

e recycling and reduced usage of paper

e energy efficient lighting in its offices

e introduction of mobile based training app

e usage of solar power

e Video conference based meetings, reviews, planning and mobile based learning
sessions help reduce carbon foot prints.
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Conservation of Energy-

No. | Particulars

1 The steps taken or impact on | The Company is taking
conservation of energy adequate steps to conserve
the energy at all the levels
and also implementing
various measures  for
reduction in consumption

of energy.
2 The steps taken by the company for | Not Applicable.
utilizing alternate sources of energy
3 The capital investment on energy | During the year under
conservation equipment’s; review, there are no

capital investment made
on energy consumption
equipment

The Company has no Foreign Technology Absorption during the period under review:

(i) the efforts made towards technology NA
absorption;
(ii) the benefits derived like product NA

improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution;

(iii) in case of imported technology NA
(imported during the last three vyears
reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year) -

(a) the details of technology imported; NA
(b) the year of import; NA
(c) whether the technology been fully NA
absorbed;

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where NA

absorption has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof; and

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research NA
and Development.
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Foreign exchange eamings and outgo:

Partic llgr: Inflow Qutflow
Current Year Hil IMR 144,69 ,634
Previows Year Hil IHR 325,082
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ANNEXURE - |
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31 March 2019
of
SAMUNNATI FINANCIAL INTERMEDIATION & SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

[Pursuant to Section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) CIN U65990TN2014PTC096252
ii) Name of the SAMUNNATI FINANCIAL INTERMEDIATION & SERVICES PRIVATE
Company LIMITED

BAID HI TECH PARK, 8TH FLOOR, NO 129 B, EAST COAST ROAD,

Registered office
THIRUVANMIYUR,

Address CHENNAI - 600 041
E-mail ID secretarial@samunnati.com
Telephone No. 044-66762400
Website www.samfin.in
Date of
iii) Incorporation 23/06/2014
iv) Type of company Category of Company Sub-Category of Company
Private Indian Non-Government

Company Limited by shares company
Limited company
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v) Details of Stock Exchange where shares are NIL

listed

Name, Address and Contact details |ntegrated Registry Management
of Registrar and Transfer Agent. Services Private Limited,

2" Floor, Kences Towers, No.1,
Ramakrishna Street, North Usman
Road, T. Nagar, Chennai - 600 117.
Email:kences®@integratedindia.in

Phone # : 044- 28140484

Il PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company
shall be stated: -

Name and Description
NIC Code of the % to total turnover
S. No of main products /
Product/ service of the company
Services
1 Financing Activity (NBFC) K 64990 100%

lil. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

HOLDING/ % OF
5. NO ?ﬁ?EOA‘:ERNYADDRESS OF cIN/GLN SUBSIDIARY/ASS [SHARES QECP#:gﬁBLE
OCIATE HELD
Samunnati Agro SolutionsU74999TN2016PTC112925 Subsidiary 100 2(87)
1. Private Limited
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IV (A)

(i)

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

Category off

Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning off

the year

No. of Shares held at the end of

the year

% change during

the year

A. Promoters

% of Total

Demat Physical [Total Shares

D6
Total

of|

Demat [Physical [Total Shares

Increase |Decrease

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF

2,30,05

5,000 2,35,058 [50.47%

2,30,058

5,000 [2,35,058 [50.47%

b) Central Govt.or
State Govt.

¢) Bodies Corporates

d) Bank/Fl

e) Any other

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1)

2,30,05

5,000 2,35,058 [50.47%

2,30,058

5,000 [2,35,058 [50.47%

(2) Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals

b) Other Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/Fl

e) Any other...

SUB TOTAL (A) (2)

Total Shareholding of

Promoter

(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)

2,30,05

5,000 2,35,058 [50.47%

2,30,058

5,000 [2,35,058 [50.47%

B.
SHAREHOLDING

PUBLIC

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/Fl

C) Central govt

d) State Govt.

e) Venture Capital
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Fund

f) Insurance Companies -+ - - -

g) FIIS | ! : :
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IV (A)

(i) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

Category of]

Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning

of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of

the year

D6 change

during the year

h) Foreign Venture

Capital Funds

i) Others [Specify]

SUB TOTAL (B)(1):

(2) Non-Institutions

a) Bodies corporates

i) Indian

75,699  [75,699

16.26%

75,699 75,699

16.26%|

ii) Overseas

15,142 [100 15,242

3.27%

15,142 1100 15,242

3.27% |

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders

holding nominal share
capital

upto INR1 lakhs

838 838

0.18%

838 838 0.18%

ii) Individuals shareholders

holding nominal share
capital in

excess of INR 1 lakhs

c) Others [ESOP Trust]

1,38,824 |1,38,824

29.81%

29.81

1,38,824 [1,38,824 [

()

SUB TOTAL (B)(2):

15,142 [2,15,461 [2,30,603

49.52%

49.52

90,841 [1,39,762 [2,30,603 po

N
(8]
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C. Shares held Dbyj
Custodian
For - : - - - - - - -

GDRs & ADRs
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(ii) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS (Equity Share Capital)
S No |Shareholders’ Name )S/zg;eholdmg at the beginning of theil;gr;eholdmg at the end of the
% offk Change in
X % of Shares % of totalShares  shareholding  during
No offe  of totalpledged No offShares  ofP'€dged the year.
Shares of theencumbered encumber
Shares C ¢ t lShares the d
ompany (o] ota e to
Shares Company ftotal
Shares
S.G. Anil Kumar 2,30,058 149.40% - 2,30,058 149.40% -
K. Seetha Lakshmi 5,000 1.07% - 5,000 1.07% -
Total 2,35,058 [50.47% - 2,35,058 [50.47% -

(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING (Equity Share Capital) ( Specify if there is no change)

Shareholding at the beginning of the year |Cumulative Shareholding during the year
SNo |Particulars % of total Shares of % of total Shares of the
No of Shares No. of Shares
the Company Company
At the beginning of the
year 2,35,058 50.47% 2,35,058 50.47%
Date wise Increase /
Decrease in  Promoters
Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasonsl-
for increase / decrease
(e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)
At the end of the year 2,35,058 50.47% 2,35,058 50.47%

There has been no change in the Promoters’ Shareholding during the year

(iv)

Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Shareholding Pattern (Equity Share Capital) of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors,

For each of the Top 10 Cumulative Shareholding during
S No [Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning of the year the year
b of total
No. of Shares 06 of total shares of No. of Shares shares of
the company the company

1. |Accel India v (Mauritius) Ltd 7,571 1.62% 7,571 1.62%
2. |Elevar M-llI 7,571 1.62% 7,571 1.62%
3. |responsAbility Agriculture I, SLP [100 0.021% 100 0.021%
4, |ECAP Equities Limited 75,699 16.25% 75,699 16.25%

Ms. Poorna Pushkala, (Trustee of

Samunnati  Employees  Stock
5. |Option Plan Welfare Trust)** 1,38,824 29.81% 1,38,824 29.81%
6. [Ritesh Nair 419 0.08% 419 0.08%
7. |Nitin Chaudhary 419 0.08% 419 0.08%

TOTAL _ 12,30,603 49.48 2,30,603 49.48

L/
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*In the Board Meeting held on 21st June 2018, the Shares of Samunnati Employees Stock Option Plan Welfare Trust

held by Mr Gurunath N - Trustee- were transferred to Ms Poorna Pushkala- Trustee - Samunnati Employees

Stock Option Plan Welfare Trust
(v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP (Equity Share)

SNo [Particulars

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No of Shares

% of total Shares of
the Company

No. of Shares

% of total Shares of|
the Company

1 S.G. Anil Kumar - Director & CEO

(i) |At the beginning of the year

2,30,058 49.40%

2,30,058

49.40%

in Promoters Shareholding
(ii) |during the year specifying the|
reasons for increase /|

Date wise Increase / Decrease

decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity, etc.)

(iii)/At the end of the year

2,30,058 49.40%

2,30,058

49.40%

2 Mr. Nitin Chaudhary- Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

(i) |At the beginning of the year

419

0.087%

419

0.08

(ii) |during the year specifying the|
reasons for increase /-

Date wise Increase / Decrease
in Promoters Shareholding

decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity, etc.)

(iii)/At the end of the year

419

0.08

419

0.08
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IV (B) (i) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Preference Share capital Break up as % to total Preference)
Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of % change
Shareholders the year the year during the year
Do of|
% of Total Total
Demat [Physical [Total Shares Demat [Physical [Total Shares |[Increase|Decrease

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF

b) Central Govt.or
State Govt.

¢) Bodies Corporates

d) Bank/Fl

e) Any other

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1)

(2) Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals

b) Other Individuals

¢) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/Fl

e) Any other...

SUB TOTAL (A) (2)

Total Shareholding of

Promoter

(A)= (A)(1) +(A)(2)

B. PUBLIC
SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/Fl

C) Central govt

d) State Govt.

e) Venture Capital
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Fund

f) Insurance Companies - - - -

g) FIIS —F : : -

30




SAMUNNATI FINANCIAL INTERMEDIATION & SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U65990TN2014PTC096252
REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS: BAID HI TECH PARK, 8TH FLOOR, NO 129 B, EAST COAST ROAD, THIRUVANMIYUR,
CHENNAI - 600 041, TAMIL NADU
Website: www.samfin.in E-mail:secretarial@samunnati.com Phone: 044-66762400

IV (A) (i) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Preference Share capital Break up as % to total Preference)

h) Foreign Venture

Capital Funds

i) Others [Specify]

(2) Non-Institutions

a) Bodies corporates

i) Indian

i) Overseas 2,92,021[7,54,234 (10,46,255 [93.25 7,28,832 3,17,423  [10,46,255 [93.25} -

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders  holding
nominal share capitall
upto INR1 lakhs

ii) Individuals
shareholders  holding
nominal share capitalf 75,700 [75,700 6.75 - 75,700 75,700 6.75
in excess of INR 1 lakhs

c) Others

C. Shares held by
Custodian

For
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GDRs & ADRs
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(iii) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS (Preference Share Capital)

SNo |Shareholders’ Name igg:eholdmg at the beginning of thesslgg;eholdmg at the end of the
% of%s Change in
by £ tot l% of Shares % of totalShares  shareholding
No offe 9 otalpledged No ofShares  ofP'€d8ed quring the year.
Shares of theencumbered encumber
Shares C o totalShareS the ed to
ompany
Shares Company ftotal
Shares
1 S.G. Anil Kumar - - - R R . .
2 K. Seethalakshmi - - R R R R N
Total - - - R R R .

(iv) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING (Preference Share Capital) (Specify if there is no change)

Shareholding at the beginning of the year |Cumulative Shareholding during the year

SNo [|Particulars % of total Shares of % of total Shares of|
No of Shares No. of Shares
the Company the Company

At the beginning of the
1 year - - - -
Date wise |Increase /|During the year there was no change in promoter’s Shareholding (Preference Share
Decrease in  Promoters/Capital)

2 Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease
(e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)
3 At the end of the year - - -

(v) Shareholding Pattern (Preference Share Capital) of top ten Shareholders (other
than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

For each of the Top 10 Cumulative Shareholding during
S No [Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning of the year the year
%  of  total
No. of Shares U6 of total shares of No. of Shares shares of
the company the company
1. |Accel India v (Mauritius) Ltd 3,62,100 32.28 3,62,100 32.28
2. |Elevar M-Il 3,66,732 32.69 3,66,732 32.69
3. [responsAbility Agriculture I, SLP [3,17,423 28.29 3,17,423 28.29
4. [RSM Associates 37,850 3.37 37,850 3.37
5. |Ramaraj Rajasekhar 37,850 3.37 37,850 3.37
TOTAL |1 1,21,955 100% 11,21,955 100%
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(vi) Shareholding of Directors & KMP (Preference Share)

S No

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

year

Cumulative Shareholding during the

Particulars

% of total Shares of

No of Shares the Company

No. of Shares

% of total Shares
of the Company

S.G. Anil Kumar - Director & CEO

(iv)

At the beginning of the year

(v

~—

Date wise Increase / Decrease
in Promoters Shareholding
during the year specifying the

decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity, etc.)

reasons for increase /-

(vi)

At the end of the year

Mr. Nitin Chaudhary - Chief Financial Officer

(iv)

At the beginning of the year

(v

~—

Date wise Increase / Decrease
in  Promoters Shareholding
during the year specifying the

decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity, etc.)

reasons for increase /-

(vi)

At the end of the year
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\' INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not

due for payment

Secured Loans

excluding deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtness at the beginning of the financial
Year

i) Principal Amount

1,56,94,68,601

1,56,94,68,601

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

1,81,02,763

1,81,02,763

Total (i+ii+iii)

1,58,75,71,364

1,58,75,71,364

Change in Indebtedness during the financial

Year

Additions 3,35,15,00,000 3,35,15,00,000
Reductio 1,33,12,64,429 1,33,12,64,429
n

Net Change 2,02,02,35,571 2,02,02,35,571

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

3,58,97,04,172

3,58,97,04,172

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

4,73,20,921

4,73,20,921

Total (i+ii+iii)

3,63,70,25,093

3,63,70,25,093
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SAMUNNATI FINANCIAL INTERMEDIATION & SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director, Executive Director and/or Manager:
Sl. No Particulars of Remuneration [Name of the MD/WTD

NA

Total Amount

Gross salary

Mr. N. Gurunath (Wholetime
Director)

(a) Salary as per provisions contained
in

section 17(1) of the Income Tax.
1961.

50,00,004

50,00,004

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of
the

Income tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section

17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Stock option®

4,790

4,790

w

Sweat Equity

Commission

as % of profit

others (specify)

Others, please specify

Total (A)

50,00,004

50,00,004

Ceiling as per the Act

NA

*This represents the total number of Stock options granted during FY 18-19.
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B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS

Sl. No PARTICULARS OF NAME OF THE DIRECTORS TOTAL
REMUNERATION IN INR AMOUNT  (in
INR)
1 Independent Directors Mr. Sunil| Mr.N. Dr. Venkatesh
Gulati Srinivasan Tagat -
(a) Fee for attending board & 3,75,000 3,60,000 90,000 8,25,000
committee meetings

(b) Commission

(c) Others, please specify

Total (1) | -1 3,60,000 3,60,000 90,000 8,25,000

2 (c) Others, please specify

(a) Fee for attending
board committee meetings

(b) Commission

(c) Others, please specify.

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2) 3,75,000 3,60,000 90,000 8,25,000

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the NA NA NA NA
Act.
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. Particulars of| Key Managerial Total
No. Remuneration Personnel
1 Gross Salary CEO - S.G. Anil CFO-Nitin ChaudharyCompany
Kumar Secretary
Niranjan
Chandrashekar#
(@) Salary as per| 1,23,21,996 50,00,004 7,64,730 180,86,730

provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the
Income Tax Act,

1961.

(b) Value of perquisites
u/s 17(2) of the

Income Tax Act, 1961

(c ) Profits in lieu of]
salary under section
17(3) of the Income Tax

Act, 1961
2 Stock Option** 28,529 11,645 - 40,174-
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4 Commission

as % of profit

others, specify
5 Others, please specify

Total 1,23,21,996 50,00,004 7,64,730 18,126,904

** This represents the total number of Stock options granted during FY 18-19.
*Appointed as CFO w.e.f 18" September 2018

#Appointed as a CS w.e.f 21° June 2018
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Type Section Brief Description | Details Of Penalty/ Authority Appeal made if
Companies Act Punishment/ (RD/NCLT/ | any
Compounding fees| Court) (give details)
imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
VII PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT /COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES NIL
For Samunnati Financial intermediation and Services Pvi Lid
F i a
f J¥ ”f- ' i
\iary ™ \
e 4 \ /IS
« Gurunath Meelamani SG Anilkumar
: Whale Time Director Director & CEO
* DIM: 02759586 DiN: 01189011

Place: Bangalore
Date: 22nd May 2019
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ANNEXURE - 1l
Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in INR ) -

Sl. Particulars Details
No.

1. | Name of the subsidiary Samunnati Agro Solutions
Private Limited

2. | Reporting period for the subsidiary | N.A
concerned, if different from the holding
company'’s reporting period

3. | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on | NA
the last date of the relevant Financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries

4. | Share capital INR 19,00,000/ -

5. | Reserves & surplus INR 16,41,15,617/-
6. | Total assets 1,29,69,66,499
7. | Total Liabilities 1,29,69,66,499
8. | Investments INR 3,42,00,000/-
9. | Turnover INR 3,45,97,42,857/-
10.| Profit before taxation INR (83,28,876)/-
11. | Provision for taxation NIL

12.| Profit after taxation INR (83,28,876)/-
13.| Proposed Dividend NIL

14.| % of shareholding 100%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.
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Part “B": Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Compamies and Joint Ventures

‘Mame of aszsociates/ Joint Ventures THA
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

7. Gharec of Acsoclate/Ioint Yentures held by the
commpany on Lhe year end

M.

‘Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture

Extent of Halding™

3. Description of how there i significant influence
4. Reason why Lhe associale/joinl venlure is nol

consalidated
5. HMet worth attributable to shareholding as per
latest audited Balance Sheet
6. Profit/Loss for the year ;
i. “Considered in Consolidation
ii. Mol Considered in Consolidatlion

1. Mames of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations - MIL
2. Hames of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year - NIL

Mate: This Form is to be certified In the same manner in which the Balance Sheet s to be certified.

For Samumnati Financial Intérmediation and Services Pyt Lid
A LI
s f L{M":”_.f‘ﬁ , Il Y\
|\ \ M-
L Gurunath Meelamani S0 Anilkumar
. Whole Time Directar Directar & CEQ
= Wil DH: 027995856 DIH: 011859011
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Annexure |

Form Mo. AQC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3} of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain Arm®s Length Trapsactions under third provision thereto.

1. Detalls of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

Mame(s) of | Mature of | Duration of the | Justification for | Date of | Amount Date on which
the related | contracts/ contractsfarran | entering into such | Approval by | paid  as | the speacial
party  and | arrangement | gementis/transa | contracts or | the Board advances, | resolution was
nature  of | sf clions arrangements  or if any passed in
relationship | transaction transactions General Meeting
as required
under first
proviso to
section 188
HIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm"s length basis:
Mame(s) of the related | Hature of | Duration of the | 5allent terms of the | Date of | Amount
party and nature of | contracts/ contracls/armange | contracls or | Approval | paid
relationship arrangements/ ments/transaction | arrangements ar | by the | advances,
Lransactions transactions  including | Board il any
the value, if any
L (Amount in INK )
Employess of Samunnati | Deputation of the | As piar the | Deputation af the | MA MIL
Financial Employecs of | agreement  dated | Employees of the Holding
Intermediation & | Samunnati 1 July 2017 and | Company.
Services Private Limited | Financial s amended [ An amount  of  INR
Intermediation & | periodically 47, 49,651/ [inclusive of
Services  Private Taxes, has been charged
Limited, to its to the Company's wholly
wholly cwred owned Subsidiary,
subsidiary, samunnati Agro Solulions
Samunnati Agro Private  Limited, as
Solutions  Private deputation charges
Limited
For Samunnati Financial Intermediation and Services Pyt Lid
NN
:'.. .r_..-“I ﬂ.l‘_' i
% /’ \ T AVE-
L& Gurunath Neslamani . 5G AnilEumar
Whale Time Director Directar & CEQ
DiH: 02799584 DiH: 01189011
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Annexure IV

BP & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2019

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members,

Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Baid Hi Tech Park, 8th Floor, No 129 B, East Coast Road,
Thiruvanmiyur, Chennai — 600041.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private
Limited(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited's
books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company
and also the information provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit and as per the explanations given to us and the
representations made by the management, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31* March, 2019 complied with the
statutory provisions listed here under and also that the company has proper board processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made
available to us and maintained by Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited's for
the financial year ended on 31*March, 2019 according to the applicable provisions of:

I
Il.
L.
Iv.

V.

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under,

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

The following laws, regulations, directions, orders applicable specifically to the Company:

a.
b.

™o

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding)
Directions, 2016.
Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016.
Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial Company Returns (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016.
Guidelines to Fair Practice Code.
Guidelines for Asset-Liability Management (ALM) system in Non-Banking Financial
Companies;

(7] 044-420478%4 New No. 74, [Old No.62), Third Floor,

@ : secretarial@bpcorpadvisors.com | Akshaya Flats, 1 2th Avenue,
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g. 'Know Your Customer (KYC) Guidelines — Anti Money Laundering Standards (AML) -

'‘Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 - Obligations of NBFCs in terms of Rules

notified there under'.

Raising money through Private Placement of NCDs by NBFCs RBI Guidelines.

Master Direction - Information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector.

Master Direction - Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

Master Direction - Miscellaneous Non-Banking Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,

2016.

I.  Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

m. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there
under,;

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,

2013
Other laws applicable to the Company as per the representations made by the Management.

x".—'."_:'

With respect to Fiscal laws such as Income Tax and Service Tax Rules, Goods and Service
Tax we have reviewed the systems and mechanisms established by the Company for
ensuring compliances under various Acts and based on the information and explanation
provided to us by the management and officers of the Company and also on verification of
compliance reports taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, we report that
adequate systems are in place to monitor and ensure compliance of fiscal laws as mentioned

above.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

iv.
V.

vi.

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India have been
generally complied with.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure.
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

The Debt Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with the proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with

provisions of the Act.

Certain meetings have been convened and held at short notice, notice has been given to all directors
with an agenda and detailed notes on the agenda were sent/tabled at the meeting and a system
exists for seeking further information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

& . 044-42047894 New No. 74, (Old No.&2), Third Fioor,
3 : secetarial@bpcorpadvisors.com | Akshaya Flats, 1 2th Avenue,
{0 : www.bpcorpadvisors.com Ashok Nagar, Chennai-B3. 44
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the following significant events have taken place:

Issue (dt - 30th March, 2018) and Allotment (dt - 9th April, 2018) of 2,000 (Two Thousand)
rated, senior, secured, redeemable, taxable, transferable, unlisted, non-convertible
debentures with face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakhs) each aggregating
to INR 20,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty Crores) with an coupon of 11.92% payable
semi annually to M/s. ASN Microkredietpool represented by its legal owner Pettelaar:

Effectenbewaarbedrijf N.V.

Appointment of Mr. C S Niranjan as Company Secretary of the Company with effect from
21st June, 2018

Issue (dt - 29th August, 2018) and Allotment (dt - 31st August, 2018) of 244 (Two Hundred
and FortyFour) rated, senior, secured, redeemable, taxable, transferable, unlisted, non-
convertible debentures with face value of INR 10,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten Lakhs) each
aggregating INR 24,40,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty Four Crore and Forty Lakhs) with an
coupon of 12.58% payable quarterly to M/s. Incofin CVSO, CVBA-SO.

ApEointment of Mr. Venkatesh Tagat as Independent Director (Additional) with effect from
18" Sept, 2018

Appointment of Mr. Nitin Chaudhary as Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect
from 18" Sept, 2018

Issue (dt - 18th Sept, 2018) and Allotment (dt - 24th September, 2018) of 450 (Four
Hundred Fifty) rated, senior, secured, redeemable, taxable, transferable, unlisted, non-
convertible debentures with face value of INR 10,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten Lakhs) each
aggregating INR 45,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Forty FiveCroreOnly) with a coupon of
12.0167% payable Semi-Annually to M/s. TriodosSicav Il —TriodosMicroFinance Fund,
Triodos Fair Share Fund and StichtingHivosTriodosFonds.

Listed Market Linked Debentures (MLDs) with Bombay Stock Exchange with effect from
2nd November, 2018 and the MLDs were delisted before 31st March, 2019

Issue (dt - 3rd December, 2018) and Allotment (dt - 5th December, 2018) of 3330 (Three
Thousand Three Hundred and Thirty) rated, senior, secured, redeemable, taxable,
transferable, unlisted, non-convertible debentures with face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian
Rupees One Lakh) each aggregating INR 33,30,00,000 (Indian Rupees Thirty Three
Crores and Thirty Lakhs) with a coupon of 12.10% payable Semi-Annually to M/s.AAVSarl
and Masala Investment Sarl.

& 04442047894 New No. 74, [Oid No.62|, Third Floor,
3 | secetanal@bpcorpachvisors.com | Akshaya Flats, 1 2th Avenue,
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Issue (dt - 7th December, 2018) and Allotment (dt - 12th December, 2018) of 7062 {Seven
Thousand and Sixty two) rated, senior, secured, redeemable, taxable, transferable,
9 unlisted, non-convertible debentures with face value of INR 50,000 (Indian Rupees Fifty
Thousand) each aggregating INR 35,31,00,000 (Indian Rupees Thirty Five Crores and
Thity One Lakhs Only) with a coupon of 12.30% payable Semi-Annually to M/s.
NederlandseFinancierings-MaatschappijVoorOntwikkelingslanden N.V. (FMO).

For BP & Associates
Company Secretarie

Date: May 22, 2019
Place: Chennai

K J Chaddramouli
Partner
CP No:15708 | M No: 25315

New No. 74, [Dld No.&2|, Third Floor,

Ashok Nagar, Chennai-83 46
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To

Company Secretaries

'ANNEXURE A'

The Members,

Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited,
Baid Hi Tech Park, 8th Floor, No 129 B, East Coast Road,
Thiruvanmiyur, Chennai — 600041.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter

1.

Date: May 22, 2019
Place: Chennai

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on a test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Account of the company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events efc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on a test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

For BP & Associates
Company Seggretarjes

KJ Ch mouli
Partner
CP No: 15708 | M No: 25315

&  045-42047894 New No. 74, (Old No.62), Third Floor,

3 | secretaral@bpcorpadvisors.com | Akshaya Flats, 12th Avenue,
{7 | www.bpcorpadvisors.com Ashok Nagar, Chennai-B3 47
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services
Private Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Shest as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit and
Less and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information. .

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us, the aforesaid standaione

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act) in the manner so required and

give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principies generally accepted in India inctuding the Accounti rg

ction 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as

amended), of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and its profit and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibifities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibiiities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAl') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. :

Information other than the Standalone Finaneial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

4. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Other information dees not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Cur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion therean.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. Reporting
under this section is not applicable as no other information is obtained at the date of this auditor's report,

Chartered Accountants Walker Changiok & Co LLp is registered
with limited liability with identification
Offices in Bengalury, Chardigarh, Chennai, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbai, New Delhi, Noida and Pune number AAC-2085 and its registered office

ati~11 Connaught Gircus, New Daihi,
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in preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going cencern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do 50.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibiiities for the Audit of the Standalone Financijal Statements

error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they couid reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professionai skepticismm throughout the audit. We also:

* [dentify
or error
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as #raud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional ornissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

¢ Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

¢  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as g going concern. If we conclude that a materia
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the refated disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disciosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overal bresentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fajr presentation.

Chartored Aceountanis 50
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Samunnati Financial
Intermediation & Services Private Limited, on the standalone financiaj statements for the year ended 31 March
2019

(i} (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies werg noticed on such verffication. In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the fixed assets
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

{c) The title deed of the immovable property (which are included under the head ‘Property, plant and
equipment’) are held in the name of the Company.

{in The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are
not applicable,

(iii) The Company has granted unsecured loans to company covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act; and with respect fo the same:

{8) in our opinion the terms and conditions of grant of such loans are not, prima facie, prejudicial to
the company's interest.

(b) the schedule of fepayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayment/receipts of the principal amount and the interest are regular,

(c) there is no overdue amount in respect of Joans granted to such company.

{iv) In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of
ioans, investments, guarantees ang security.

(v} n our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (@s amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3{v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi)

of the Order are not applicable.

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, empioyees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, &g applicable,
have generally been regularly deposited to the appropriate authorities, though there has heen a slight delay in
a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for
& period of more than six months from the date they became payable,

(b) The dues cutstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise
and value added tax on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Period to Forum where

Name of the | Nature of Amount(g) | Amount paid under

Protest (%) which the dispute is
statute dues amount pending
relates

Income
Act, 1961

Tax | Tax & | 38,657 514 2,100,000
Interest

AY 2016-17 Assessing Officer

(viii} The Company has naot defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institution or a
: bank or goverrment or any dues to debenture-holders during the year.

In our opinicn, the Company has applied moneys raised by way of the term loans for the purposes for which
these ware raised. The Company did not rajse moneys by way of initial public offer/ further public offer
{including debt instruments.
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{xi)

(i)

(i)

(xiv)

(o)

(xvi)

No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during
the period covered by our audit.

The provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Company

since the Company is not g public company as defined under Section 2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, provisions
of clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable.

not applicable.

In our opinion, ali transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act, where
appiicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. Further, in our opinion, the Company is not required to constitute audit
committee under Section 177 of the Act,

During the year, the Company has made private placement of non-convertible debentures. In respect of the
Same, in our cpinion, the ©ompany has complied with the requirement of Section 42 of the Act and the Ruies
framed thereunder. Further, in our opinion, the amounts so raised were applied for the purposes for which
these securities were issued, though surplus funds which were nat required for immediate utilisation have been
invested in liquid investments, but were ultimately utilized for the stated end-use. Also during the current year,
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares.

In aur opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons
connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.

The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and
such registration has been obtained by the Company.

For Walker Chandiok & ColLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.- 001076N/NS0OO0O13

el

ikhil Vaid

Partner

Membership No.: 213355

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22 May 2019

Chartered Accountants

E ‘\,-f c:.;‘_cé
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independent Auditor's Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financia statements of Samunnati Financiaj intermediation & Services
Private Limited {'the Comp y) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019, we have audited the internal financial
centrols over financial reperting ('IFCoFR’) of the Company as at that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the intemnal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl}. These responsibilities inciude the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficiant conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR, assessing the risk that
& material weakness exists, and testing and evaiuating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controf
based on the assessed rigk. The procedures selected depand on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstaternent of the financial staternents, whether due to fraud or error.,

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR,

Mearing of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

of the company are being made only in accordance with autherisations of management and directors of the company;
and {3) provide reasonabie assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a matenial effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of tnternal Financial Controls over Finanecial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent imitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that the IFCoFR may become inadequate because
of changes in congditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Chartered Accotintants 5 3
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Annexure B io.the Independent Auditor's Report of even.date to the members of Samunnati Financial
Intermediation & Services Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019

Opinion

8. Inour opinien, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting
and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential cemponents of internal controf stated in the Guidance
Note issued by the [CA|.

For Waiker Chandiok & ColLpP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.- 001a76N/NS00013

P

g\,% L Vg
ikhil Vaid

Partner

Membership No.: 213356

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22 May 2019
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

- Balance sheet as at 31 March 2019

{(All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3 14,487,920 14,487,920
Reserves and surplus 4 1,836,491,073 1,816,034,454
1,950,978,993 1,830,522,374
Neon-current liabifities
Long-term borrowings 5 2,256,108,649 883,738,917
Other liabilities 6 3,322,517 11,111,882
Long-term: provisions 7 20,920,158 12,275,962
2,280,351,324 917,126,861
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 8 55,000,000 120,000,000
Cther liabilittes 6 1,460,521,933 545,359,636
Short-term provisions 7 33,550,223 12,213,532
1,549,072,156 777,673,168
Total equity and liabilities 5,780,402,473 3,525222,403
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 35,699,160 13,967,021
Intangible assets 10 1,735,465 867,876
Capital work-in progress - 1,110,400
Intangible assets under development 4,189,960 545,000
Non-current investments 11 180,100,000 180,100,000
Receivables from financing activity 12 915,117,730 862,964,500
Long-term loans and advances 13 36,045,120 13,930,665
Other non-current assets 14 175,342,535 69,420,983
1,348,229,970 1,142,911,445
Current assets
Current investments 11 30,000,000 20,043,241
Trade receivables 15 1,878,152 3,113,770
Cash and bank balances 16 513,178,322 688,738,541
Receivables from financing activity 12 3,385,385,758 1,341,807,762
Short-term [oans and advances 13 305,868,756 226,290,401
Other current assets 17 195,861,515 102,317,243
4,432,172,503 2,382,310,958
Total Assets 5,780,402 473 3,525,222.403

Notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements

This is the balance sheet referrad to in our report of

even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Nelbot Vo d
Nikhil Vaid

Partner

Membership No: 213355

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

WAL

Director and CEQ
DIN: 01189011

i

\

X i
Wb (Lo
itin Chaudhary
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 22 May 2019

riene

DIN: 02799586

3“i,v$'°ﬁurunath Neelamani
" Director
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Statement of profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March 2019

{All amounts are in indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated}

Year ended Year ended

Notes 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue
Revenue from operations 18 808,841,461 336,849,610
Other income 19 46,833,691 31,043,150
Total revenue 855,675,152 367,992,760
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 20 244,904,292 135,503,716
Finance costs 21 328,154,945 175,079,000
Loan provisions and write-offs 22 53,214,016 27,813,346
Cepreciation and amortization expense 23 5,906,787 3,296,313
Other expenses 24 123,303,821 55,247 818
Total expenses 755,483,861 396,943,283
Profit/(Loss) before tax 100,191,291 (28,950,523)
Tax expense

Current tax 19,384,379 -
MAT credi enfitlement {13,662,403) -

Profit{Loss) for the year 94,469,315 (28.950.523)
Earnings per share 28
Basic (% per share of ¥ 10 each) 202.87 (69.78}
Ciluted (% per share of T 10 each) 50.50 (69.78)

Notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial staterments

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of
even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

NrEb \f&.;*éji
Nikhil Vaid

Partner

Membership No: 213356

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22 May 2019

For ard on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Samunnati Financial Interm diation=5& Services Private Limited

Ditector and CEQ

DIN: 01189011

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 22 May 2019

= Director
DIN: 02799586

Company Secretary
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2819

Year ended
31 March 2018

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Adjustments for
Interest income on deposits
Income frem mutual funds
Graluity and leave encashment expenses
Employee stock option expense
Depreciation and amortization expense
Loss on sale of property, piant and equipment
Provision against standard assets
Provision against nor-performing assets
Loan receivabies written off
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
Operating loss before working capital changes
increase/{Decrease) in other liabilities
Movement in provisions
Decrease in trade receivables
{Increase) in receivables fram financing activity including accrued interest
(Increase) in loans and advances
{(Increase) in other assets
Cash used in operating activities
Income taxes paid
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Mevement in deposits with banks and financial institutions
Movement in other bank batances
interest income on depasits
Investment in subsidiary
Investment in mutual fund units, net
Income from mutual fund investments
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shareg
Share issue expenses
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrewings
Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

<This space has been intentionalfly ieft blank>

100,191,291 (28,950,523)
{17,148 564) (5,220,765)
(23,652,792) (16,040.485)
8,030,227 4,474,851
25,987,304 16,243,161
5,906,787 3,299,313
1,760,086 4,874
10,071,313 9,515,202
43,117,772 5,593,331
- 5,229,329
- 68,016
154,263,424 (5,783,686)
83,843,314 33,134,168
24,931 (10,851,220)
1,235,618 4,151,682

(2,216,708,129)
{10,170,369)

(1,636,650,634)
(95,791,918)

(51,598,745) (26,113,270)
(2,049,109,556) (1,738,004, 388)
(35,742,363) (5,292,135)
(2,084,852,319) {1,743,297,023)
(32,311,781) (8.642,042)
172,224 23,498
(125,501,915) 8,166,035
5,826,516 -
12,320,604 3,867,458
- {180,008,000)
(9.956,759) (20,043,241)
23,652,762 16,040,485
{126,798,299) {180,586,907)

3,031,814,482
(1,011,578,911)

1,500,003,367
(26,612,1486)
1,715,000,000
(709,811,376)

2,020,235,571 2,478,579,845
(191,415,047) 554,685,915
678,842,025 124,146,110
487,426,978 678,842,025
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unfess otherwise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of (Also, refer note16)
Cash on hand
Balances with hanks
- in current accounts
- in deposit accounts (with original maturity upto three months)

261,275 142,480
377,165,703 448,878,128
110,000,000 229,821,437
487,426,978 678,842,025

This is the cash flow staternent referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001 O76N/NS00013

. H

M’a Eé\u\ Yol 5§
Nikhil Vaid

Partner

Membership No: 213356

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22 May 2019

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Samunnati Financigl-iﬁfé;ﬁ:&i_:[iation & Services Private Limited

i

H

i

DATTA LY g
D] 1
$'G Anil Kithar . _Gurunath Neetamani

Director and CEQ " Director
DIN: 01189011 DIN; 02799586
‘\,J( .

Nitin Chaudhary
Chief Financial Officer Compafiy Secretary
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 22 May 2019
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

1 Company Overview

Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited (the Company’) is an Nor-Barking Financial Institution (NBF1) incorporated on 23
June 2014, The Company has received Certificate of Registration dated 25 February 2016 from the Reserve Bank of india to carry on the
business of NorBarking Financial tnstitution without accepting deposits. The Company provides secured and unsecured loans to farmers, farmer
producer organizations, community based organizations and Agri-enterprises. The Company commenced active NBF? aperations from the month
of July 2016. The Company has met the criteria to be classified as NBFC - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company {NBFC-ND-SI)
per regulations of Reserve Bank of India {'RBI") during the current year.

All amounts in the financial statements are presented in indian Rupees except share dats and as otherwise stated. Figures for the previous period
have been regrouped / rearranged wherever considered hecessary {o canform to the figures presented in the current year.

2 Summary of accounting policies

2.1 Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared under the historic cost convention on accrual basis of accounting except interest in respect of non-
performing loan assets are accaunted for on cash basis in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP") appiicable in India.
GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act) read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the provisions of RBI as applicable to an
NBFC-ND-SI. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. The management avaluates all recently
issued or revised accounting standards on an ongeing basis.

2.2 Use of estimates

2.3 Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciatior: and impairment losses, if any. Cost of acquisition
comprises of purchase price and direcily attributable costs of bringing the asset {o its working condition for the intended use and is net of
refundable duties and taxes as applicable. Cost of assets not ready for the intended use before such date is disclosed as capital work in progress.
Subsequent expenditure incurred on an item of tangible asset is added to the bagk value of that asset only if this increases the fuiure benefits from
the existing asset bayond its previously assessed standard of performance.
Gains or logses that arise on disposal or retirement of an asset are measured as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying
value of an asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.
Depreciation on assets is provided on straight line method over its estimated usefuyl life prescribed under Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013,
Leasehold improvements are amortised over the estimated useful lives of the improvements made or the remaining primary lease period,
whichever js [ess. .
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, the intangible assets are carmied at
cost less accumulated amortization ang accumulated impairment, if any. Software is stated at cost less accumulated amortization and are being
amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life.
The amortization pericd and method are reviewed at each balance sheet date. i the expected useful [ife of the asset is significantly different from
the previous estimates, the amortization pedod is changed accordingly. If there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of economic
benefit from the asset, the method of amortization is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such changes are accounted in accordance with
Accounting Standard (AS) 5, Net Profit or L.oss for the Period, Prior Period ltems and Changes in Accounting Policies,

24 Impairment of assets
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impalred. i any such indication exists,
the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash generating unit's
net selling price and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset doss nat generate cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets, If such recoverable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is fess than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced toits
recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and lass. If at the balance

2.5 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic bensfits will flow to the Company and the collectability is reasonably
assured.
Interest on loans is recognised on accrual basis (Intemal rate of return/IRR} where as income from nen—performing assets (NPA) is not
recognised on accrual basis but is booked as income only whan it is actually received as per RBI Guidalines.
Interest income an deposits with banks and financial institutions is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding
and the rate applicable.
toan processing fees is accounted up-front as and when it becomes due.,
Service fee is recognized on accrual basis in accordance with terms of the agreemnent.
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Samunnati Financial intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

25

2.6

2.7

28

2.9

210

2.11

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income on securitisation

The contractual right retained by the company to receive a portion of Interest {Unrealised profits’) arising at the time of securitization of foan
portfolic (Excess Interest Spread-EIS) is recorded at present value and disclosed as “Interest strip on securitization” within “Other Assets” on the
balance sheet. In accordance with the RBE guidelines, the unrealized profits in respect of securitized loan portfolio that is not due for collection is
recorded ai its present value and disclosed as “Interest strip on securitization™ within “Other liabilities™ on the balance sheet, Interest retained under
securitization of loans is recognized on realization basis over the life of the underlying porifolic.

Losses arising on account of securitisation transactions are recognised in Statement of profit and loss immediately upon receipt of consideration.

Investments

Investments, which are readily realisable and intended to be held for not mara than one year from the date an which such investments are made,
are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long~term investments. On initial recognition, all investments are
measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. Current
investments are carried in the financial statements at fair value determined on an individual investment basis per provisions of RBI as applicable
to an NBFC-ND-SI. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other

Taxation

Provision for tax for the year comprises current incame tax and deferred tax. Provision for cument income tax is made based on the estimated tax
liability in accordance with the relevant tax rates and tax [aws.

Current tax is payable on taxable profits, which differ from profit or loss in the financial statements. Current tax is com puted based on tax rates and
tax [aws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Unrecognized deferred fax assets of earfier Years are re-assessed and will be recognized to the extent that it has become reasonably certain that
future taxable income are available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

The Company offsefs deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off asseis against
Fabilities representing current tax.

In computing current taxes the Company takes into consideration the benefits admissible under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1861, In
cases wherever the tax liability computed as per above is less than the Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT), the Company is liable to pay the MAT, in

Contingent labilities and provisions
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event Le., it is probable that an autflow of resources will

may, but probably witl not, require an outflow of resources.

Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders {after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes, i any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue, bonus efement in a rights issue to
existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares). For the purpose of diluted earnings per share, the net profit for
the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Operating leases
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially, all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased asset, are classified as operating
leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss ona straight-line basis over the lease term.

Transaction costs

Transaction costs including loan origination costs are incremeantal costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of share capital and financial
tiability. Transaction costs includes fees paid to advisors and levies regulatory agencies, including taxes and duties, Transaction cosis incurred
towards:

i) Issuance of share capital and debentures are adjusted from securities premium account to the extent of available in terms of Section 52 of the
Companies Act 2013.

i) Acquisition of borrowings is amortised over the tenure of borrowings.
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Employee benefits

Defined benefit plan: The Company provides gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. Liabilifies related to the
gratuity plan are determined by an independent actuarial valuation carried out using projected unit credit method as at the balance sheet date.
Actuarial gain or loss is recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Compensated absences: Accumulated leaves, which are expected to be utilized within the next 12 menths, are treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the Lnused
entiflement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The company treats accumulated leaves which are expected to be carried forward beyond
12 months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
nen-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, financing and investing
activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information. Cash cemprises of cash on hand and demand deposits with banks.
Cash equivalents are short-term balances {with an original maturity of three months or less from: the date of acquisition}, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible inta known amounts of cash and which are subject fc an insignificant risk of changes in valye.

Classification and provisioning of loan assets

The loans are classified and provided based on management's estimates, as detalled below, which are more prudent than the classification and
provision norms required as per "Master Direction - Kon-Banking Financial Company - Systemically important Nen-Deposit taking Company and
Deposit taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2018", DNBR.PD.008/03.10,119/2015-17, dated 01 September 2016, (as amended) issued
by the RBI.

The classification and provisioning rorms that was followed by the Company during the previous year ended 31 March 2018 is as undar-

Asset classification (based on period of overdue in days) Secured/Un-secured

Standard

Less than or equal to 90 days 0.50%
Sub-Standard

91 days to 360 days 10%
Doubtful

361 days to 540 days 20%
Loss Asset

541 days and abowe 100%

During the current year management has revised the classification and provisioning norms as under:-

Asset classification (based on period of overdue in days) Secured [Un-secured
Standard

Less than or equal to 90 days 0.50% 0.50%
Sub-Standard

91 days to 360 days 20% 20%
361 days to 450 days 20% 50%
Doubtful

451 days to 810 days 30% 100%
811 days to 1170 days 50% 100%
Above 1171 days 100% 100%
Loss Asset 100% 100%

Foreign currency transactions

by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange
ion, At reporting date, all monetary assets and liabilities
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As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Number T Number g
3 Share capital
Authorised
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 750,000 7,500,000 750,000 7,500,000
Compulsorily convertible preference shares of 10 each 1,250,000 12,500,000 1,250,000 12,500,000

2,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 465,661 4.856,610 465,661 4,656,610
Less: Amount recoverable from Samunnati ESOP Welfare Trust {138,824) (%,388,240) {138,824} (1,388,240}
(Also, refer note g)
326,837 3,268,370 326,837 3,268,370
Compulsorily convertible preference shares of ¥ 10 each 1,121,855 11,219,550 1,121,955 11,218,550
1,121,955 11,219,550 1,121,955 11,219,550
1,448,792 14,487,920 1,448,792 14,487,920
a} Reconciliation of equity share capital
Balance at the beginning of the year 465,661 4,656,610 395,193 3,851,930
Add : Issued during the year - - 70,468 704,880
Balance at the end of the year 465,661 4,656,610 465,661 4,656,610
b} Reconciliation of preference share capital
Compulserily convertible preference shares of ¥ 10 each
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,121,955 11,219,550 561,720 5,617,200
Add : lssued during the year - - 560,235 5,602,350
Balance at the end of the year 1,121,955 11,219,550 1,121,955 11,219,550
¢) Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares Number % of holding Number % of holding
Equity shares of T 10 each
S G Anil Kumar 230,058 49% 230,058 49%
Samunnati ESOP Weifare Trust 138,824 30% 138,824 30%
Ecap Equities Limited 75,699 16% 75,699 16%
Compulsorily convertible preference shares of ¥ 10 each
Efevar M - Il 366,732 33% 366,732 33%
Accel India V (Mauritius ) Ltd 362,160 32% 362,100 32%
responsAbility Agriculture |, SLP 317,423 28% 317,423 28%

d} There were no shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus issues and
shares bought back since incorporation of the Company.

e) Terms and rights attached to equify shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of
the sharehoiders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except interim dividend which can be approved by the Board of Directors. In the event of
liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion te the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

f) Terms and rights attached to preference shares
The Company has issued Series A1, A2, A3, B and C compulsorily convertible preference shares having a face value of ¥ 10 per share. At the
option of the holders, these shares, either in whole or in part, may be converted into equity shares in the rafio of 1:1 before the expiry of 19 years
from the issuance of such compulsorily convertible preference shares. Fach holder of the compulsorily conrvertible preference shares is entitled to
one vote per share. Dividend on each compulsarily convertible preference shares is 0.01% per annum, subject to cash flow solvency, and such

dividend shall be a preferred dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of compulsorily convertible preference shares shall
have a preference over other share holders of the Company.

Dates for conversion

Date Series Amount
27-Dec-386 [+ 5,602,350
27-Feb-36 B 2,764,820
31-Mar-35] A3 611,420

25-Jul-34] A2 1,255,010
25-Feb-34| A1 985,850

g) The Company has given interest and collateral free loan to an Ermployee Stock Optien Trust ("Samunnati Employee Stock Opfion Plan Welfare
Trust" or "ESOP Trust") to provide financial assistance for purchase of equity shafes of the Company under Employee Stock Option Scheme. The
Company has established ESOP Trust to which the stock options issuable have been transferred. The amount recoverable from the ESOP Trust
has been reduced from issued share capital (to the extent of face value) and from securities premium (to the extent of premium on shares).
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As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2018

4 Reserves and surplus

a) Statutory reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Transferred from surplus balance in the statement of profit and loss

Balance at the end of the year

b) Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the pericd
Add : Additions made curing the year
Less : Utilised towards share issue expenses
Balance at the end of the period

Less: Amounts recoverable from ESOP Trust

€} Stock options outstanding account
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add : Share based compensation for the year
Balance at the end of the year

d} Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the period
Add: Transferred from statement of profit and loss
Less: Transferred to statutory reserve
[@ 20% of profit after tax as required by section 45-
IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934]
Balance at the end of the period

L4]

Long-term horrowings {Also, refer note 34)

Secured
Non-convertible redeemable debentures

Term loans from banks
Term loans from parties other than banks

Less: Classified as other current liabilities {Also, refer note 6)
Current maturities of long term borrowings

&

Other liabilities

Non-current

Interest strip on securitisation

Interest accrued but not due on debentures

Current

Current maturities of tong-term debt (Also, refer note 5 and 34)
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Interest accrued but not due on debentures
Interest strip on securitisation

Payable towards securiised portfolio
Creditors for capital goods

Employee refated payables

Statutory dues payable

Creditors for expenses

Others

18,893,863

18,893,863 -
2,044,504,602 490,157,654
- 1,580,859,054
- {26.612,146)
2,044,504,602 2,044,504,602
{88,250,715) (88,280,715}

1,956,213,887

1,956,213,887

17,730,189 1,487,028
25,987,304 16,243 161
43,717,493 17,730,180
(157,909,622) (128,959,099)
94,469,315 (28,950,523)
(18,893,863) -
(82,334,170) (157,508,622)
1,936,451,073 1,576,034,454
1,580,100,000 120,000,000
520,084,796 46,590,008
1,433,619,376 1,282,877,693
1,954,604,172 1,329,468,601
(1,278,565,523) (555,729,684)
T 2,756,108.645 893,738,917
3,322,517 3,447,142
- 7,664,840
3,322,517 11,111,982
1,278,505,523 555,729,684
7,810,847 10,437,923
39,510,074 .
45,390,393 21,527,866
33,060,723 27,037,806
663,679 -
20,897,436 8,254,322
10,705,343 5,429,872
22,878,615 16,942,163
1,460,621,933 645,359,636

As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

7 Provisions
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 9)
Provision against standard assets
Provision against non performing assets
Provisicn for loss on loans serviced

Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term
12,772,380 1,071,593 5,554,103 255,643
4,519,796 17,972,418 5,861,535 6,459,366
3,627,982 14,138,266 760,324 5,151,508
- 367,946 - 343,015
20,920,158 33,550,223 12,275,962 12,213,532
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7 Provisions {continued) As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Movement in
A Provision against standard assets
Opering balance

12,420,901 2,905,699
Add: Provision made during the year 10,071,313 9,515,202
Closing Balance 22,492 214 12,420,901
B Provision against Non performing assets
i Provision against sub-standard assets
Opening balance 5,166,442 318,501
Add: Provision made during the year 8,854,359 4,847,941
Less: Provision utilized against written off during the year - -
Closing Balance 14,120,801 5,166,442
it Provision against doubtful assets
Opening balance 745,380 -
Add: Provision made during the year 34,163,413 745,390
Less: Provision utilized against written off during the year (31,263,356) -
Closing Balance 3,645 447 745,390
€ Provisian for loss on loans serviced
Opening batance 343,015 11,294,235
Add: Provision made during the year 24,931 7475484
Less: Payments made - {18,4285,704)
Closing Balance 367,946 343,015
8 Short-term borrowings (Also, refer note 34)
Secured
Term loans from parties other than banks 25,000,000 100,600,000
Cash credit from banks 30,000,000 20,000,000
55,000,000 120,000,000

9 Employee benefits
i) Gratuity

In accordance with applicable Indian laws, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (“the Gratuity Plan™) covering eligible
employees. The Gratuity Plan provides for a lump sum Payment to vested employees on refirernent (subject to completion of five years of
continuous employment), death, incapacitation or termination of employment that are based on last drawn salary and tenure of employment. The

Company does not maintain any plan assets to fund its abligation towards gratuity Hability.

The following table set out the status of the grafuity plan as required under Accounting Standard (AS) -"15 - Employee benefits and the
feconciliation of opening and closing balances of the prasent value of the defined benefit obligation. The Company provides for gratuity liability

under the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 from financial year 2015-16.

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended

31 March 2018

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 3,401,079 1,086,157
Service cost 2,577,739 2,107,148
interest cost 470,373 74,945
Acquisitions/(Disposals) (215,023) -
Actuarial loss/{gain) 694,298 132,829
Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year {unfunded) 6,928,466 3,401,079
Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss account

Current service cost 2,577,739 2,107,148
Interest cost on benefit obligation 470,373 74,945
Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognised in the year 694,298 132,829
Net employee benefit expense 3,742,410 2,314,922
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9 Employee benefits (continued)

Reconciliation of present value of obligation

Particulars As at As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Present value of defined benefit obligation 6,928,486 3,401,079 1,086,157 609,324
Fair value of plan assets - - - -
Net liabifity 6,928,466 3,401,072 1,086,157 609,324
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 694,268 132,829 (208,751) -
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
i) Assumptions used
Discount rate 7.53% 7.52%
Long-term rate of compensation increase 10.00% 10.00%
Attrition rate 12.00% 12.00%

Compensated absences

The Company permits encashment of compensated absences accumutated by their employses on retirement, separation and during the course of
service. The liability in respect of the Company, for outstanding balance of privilege leave at the balance sheet date is determined and provided on
the basis of actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary. The Company does not maintain any plan assets to fund its obfigation

towards compensated absences,

Principal actuarial assumptions used :
Discount rate

Long-term rate of compensation increase
Aftrition rate

<This space has been intentionafly leff blank>

As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
7.53% 7.52%

10.00% 10.00%
12.00% 12.00%
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11

12

As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

Non-current

Current

Non-current

Current

Investments - Unquoted

Non - Current {Trade investments):

Valued at cost unless stated otherwise

Investments in equity instruments of Whotly-owned

subsidiary

-Unquoted

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited
190,000 {previous year 1 90,000) equity shares with
nominal value of ¥ 10 each; extent of share holding
100% (previous year 100%)

Current (Non-Trade Investments):

-Ungquoted

Carried at Net Asset Value

investments in Mutual Funds {unquoted)

180,100,000

30,000,000

180,100,000

20,043,241

180,100,000

30,000,000

180,160,000

20,043,241

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market -
value thereof

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 180,100,600
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of -
investments

Details of current investments
Current investments in mutual funds comprise:

Name of Mutual fund

Tata Liquid Fund Regular Plan-Growth

Current investments in mutual funds comprise:
Name of Mutual fund

Reliance Liquid Fund-TP-Direct Plan Growth Plan-Growth Option -LFAG

ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund -Direct Plan-Growth

Aditya Birka Sun iife Floating Rate Fund Short Term Plan -Growth-Regular Plan
Aditya Birta Sun Life Cash Plus -Growth -Regular Plan

L & T Liquid Fund-Regular Growth

Kotak Floater Short Term -Growth (Regular Plan)

Tata Liquid Fund Regular Plan-Growth

UTI Money Market Fund-Institutional Pian -Growth Plan

Axis Liquid Fund - Growth-CFGP

Baroda Pioneer Liquid Fund -Plan A Growth

30,000,000

As at 31 March 2019

180,100,000

20,043,241

As at 31 March 2019

No of units Amount
10,197 30,000,000
30,000,000

As at 31 March 2018

No of units Amount
657 2,738,927
287 72,001

3,355 761,265
3,343 813,495
296 699,002
1,867 5,294,979
B55 1,754,128
1,270 2,437,328
1,499 2,847 750
1,280 2,524 366
20,043,241

As at 31 March 2018

Non-current Current Non-current Current
Receivables from financing activity
Secured
Standard assets 237,055,332 241,403,263 174,890,905 232,617,358
Nor-performing assets 4,440 900 15,642,818 5,398,950 20,122 509
241,496,232 257,046,081 180,289,855 252,739,867
Unsecured
Standard assets 666,903,886 3,081,080,412 680,475,358 1,059,255 845
Non-performing assets 6,717,612 47,259 265 2,204,287 29,812,050
673,621,498 3,128,339,677 682,679,645 1,089,067,895
915,117,730 3,385,385,758 862,969,500 1,341,807,762

The above amounts have been considered good except to the extent of provision created on standard and non performing assets

Note 7.

as disclosed in
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13

14

15

16

17

As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term

Loans and advances
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits 7,642,827 - 4,821 550 -
Capital advances 397,368 - 895,314 -
Balances with government authorities - 3,363,657 - 1,337,745
Tax deducted at source receivable 24,458,405 - 8,100,421 -
MAT credit entilement - 13,662,403 - -
Employee advances - 513,471 - 408,886
Prepaid expenses 3,433,140 14,670,187 - 2,653,433
Loans to related parties;

Samunnafi Agro Solutions Private Limited* - 272,000,000 - 210,000,000
Other receivabie from related parties:

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited - 1,658,038 - 11,431,601

Samunnati ESOP Trust 113,380 - 113,380 -
Other advances - - - 458,736

36,045,120 305,868,756 13,930,665 226,290,401

* The Company has advanced loans for working capital purposes repayable within one year from the date of disbursement, Interest charged

between 14% to 18% (previous year: 18%)

Other recelvables from Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited amounting to 1,659,038 represents recharge of salary costs to Samunnati

Solutions Private Limited which is expected to be collected within one month from end of the correspending quarter,

Other non-current assets

Deposits held with financial institutions
Margin money deposits (Also, refer note 186)
interest accrued but not due on deposits
[nterest strip on securitisation

Unamortised cost of borrowings

Trade receivables
Outstanding for a periad of more than six months
From trading activity
Considered good
Considered doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtful debts

Other debts - considered good
Loan service fee receivable

Cash and bank balanices

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Balances with banks

- in current accounts

- In deposit account (with original maturity upto 3 months)

Other bank balances

- in deposit account (with original maturity more than 3 months)
Margin maoney deposits#

Less: Classified as non-current balances {Also, refer note 14)

# Held as collateral against borrowings and securitisation transactions

Other current assets
Investment in Pass Threugh Certificates - current maturities
Deposits held with financiat institution
Interest accrued but not due on deposits
Interest income accrued on
- Receivables from financing activity
- Loans to subsidiary
Interest strip on securitisation
Unamortised cost of barrowings
Other receivables

As at
31 March 2019

Agro

As at
31 March 2018

42,000,000 24,333,334
143,435,249 26,281,344
1,061,634 2,683,558
3,234,539 3,447,142
15,611,113 12,675,605
175,342,535 69,420,983
- 272,066

- 88,016

- (66,016)

. 272,666

1,678,152 2,841,704
1,878,152 7,841,704
1,378,152 3,113,770
261,275 142,460
377,165,703 448,878,128
110,000,000 229,821,437
437,426,978 678,842,025
. 5,826,516
169,185,593 30,351,344
(143 435,249) (26,281,344)
25,751,344 9,896,516
513,178,322 688,738,541
40,375,944 -
4833334 4,333,333
8,566,596 1,738,636
72,148,014 39,313,769
5,699,466 10,315,164
45,478,371 21,527,866
17,179,014 22,093,155
2,580,776 2,495,320
195,361,515 102,317,243
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Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

18 Revenue from operations
Interest income on receivables from financing activity
Loan processing fees
Interest income from securitisation of loans
fnterest on loan to subsidiary
Other operating income

19 Gther income
Interest income on fixed deposits
Income from mutual fund investments
Interest income from investment in Pass Through Certificates
Recovery of defaults in loan serviced
Other income

20 Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages
Gratuity and leave encashment expenses (Refer note 9y
Contribution to provident and other funds
Employee stock oplion expenses
Staff welfare expenses

21 Finance costs
Interest expenses
Other borrowing costs

22 Loan provisions and write-offs
Provision against standard assets
Provision against non performing assets*
Provisions for foss on loans serviced
Loan receivables written off

*The company has revised its estimate for providing for losses on non-

note 2.14. Had the Company continued to provide for foss assets per estimates appli
nen-performing assets would have been lower by Z 8,706,103 with a resuitant increa

23 Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation expense {Also, refer note 10)
Amortisation expense (Also, refer note 10)

24 Other expenses
Power and fuel
Rent (Also, refer note 32)
Repairs and maintanance - others
Technolegy and communication expenses
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Legat and professional charges
Loan servicing fee expenses
Payments to auditors (Also, refer note 25)
Sitting fees
Travelling and conveyance
Membership and subs cription charges
Prirding and stationery
Provision for bad and doubtfut debis
Loss on sale of praperty, plant and equipment
Miscellaneous expenses

678,856,681 283,371,267
48,841,418 23,751,842
48,808,633 2,773,020
30,192,604 24,705,574

2,142,125 2,347,907

808,841,461 336,949,610
17,148,564 5,220,765
23,652,752 16,040,485

2,880,208 -
2,832,497 9,560,566
308,630 221,334
46,833,691 31,043,150
162,532,039 104,964,664
8,449,120 4,601,585
6,221,120 4,263,748
25,987,304 16,243,151
11,714,709 5,430,558

244,904,292 135,503,716

310,453,276 160,819,486
17,701,669 14,259,604

328,154,945 175,079,090
10,071,313 9,515,202
43,117,772 5,593,331

24,931 7,475,484
- 5,229,329
53,214,016 27,813,346

loan receivables from financing activity, as detailed in
ed in the previous year, the provision for losses against
se in reserves and surplus to that extent,

5,625,703 3,109,686
381,084 189,627
5,906,787 3,299,313
1,670,521 697,925
9,663,097 5,022,186
6,634,849 3,609,546
12,449,045 8,117,138
162,096 280,394
647,821 122,048
36,576,708 11,108,431
16,494,934 3,222,902
1,634,700 1,514,100
899,250 588,600
25,084,613 14,449,229
3,993,036 1,645,886
2,653,191 1,726,377
272,066 68,016
1,760,086 4,874
2,827,808 3,059,168
123,303,821 55,247,518
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Samunnati Financia Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

25 Payment to auditors {excluding applicable taxes)

Statutory audit 1,400,000 1,300,000
Tax audit 150,000 158,000
Out of pocket expenses 84,700 54,100

1,634,700 1,514,100

27 Expenditure in foreign currency
Expenditure refating to debenture issue

28 Corporate social responsibility expenditure

14,669,634

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, 2% of the average net profit of the last 3 years. However, there is no expense fo be

incurred on account of losses ineurred during the tast three years,

28 Earnings per equity share

Profiti(Loss) for the year (In¥) 94,469,315 (28,950,523}
Less: Preference dividend {(Ing) - -
Profit attributable to equity shareholgers {(in® 94,469,315 (28,850,523)
Weighted average number of equity shares in caleulating basic EPS 465,661 414,885
Add: Effective of dilutive potential equity shares * 1,121,955 1,121,855
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating dilutive EPS 1,587,616 1,536,840
Earnings per share
-Basic (In¥) 202.87 (69.78)
- Diluted (In %) 59.50 (69.78)
* in view of lesses incurred during the previous year, potential equity shares are anti-dilutive in nature

As at As at

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

3@ Classification and provisions for loan assets (net)
Assef classification
Standard assets
Substandard
Doubtful

Less: Provision
Standard assets
Substandard
Doubtful

Loan outstanding (net)
Standard assefs
Substandard

Doubtful

<This space is intentionall fy left blanic>

4,498,442 893
62,944,098
11,116,497

22,492,214
14,120,801
3,645,447

4,475,850,679
48,823,297
7.471,050

2,357,239,466
53,785,274
3,752,522

12,420,901
5,166,442
745,390

2,344,818,565
48,618,832
3,007,132




Samunaati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{(Ali amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

31 Related party disclosures

a} Names of related parties and relationship
Relationship

Wholly owned Subsidiary

Key management personnel (KMP)

Name of the related party
Samunnati Agre Solttions Private Limited

S G Anil Kumar- Director and CEOQ

Gurunath N - Director

Nitin Chaudhary - Chief Financial Officer (with
effect from 18 September 2018}

Sarmunnati ESOP Welfare Trust

Entfty in which KMP has significant influence

b) Related party transactions

Nature of transactions Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited

Loans given 472,000,000 230,000,000

Loans repaid 410,000,000 145,000,000

Interest income on loans 30,192,604 24,705,574

Deputation charges 4,025,128 7,369,211

Reimbursement of expenses - 205,915

5 G Anil Kumar

Remuneration * 12,321,906 8,287,004

Reimbursement of expenses 54,530 61,000

Gurunath N

Remuneration * 5,000,004 3,326,645

Nitin Chaudhary

Remuneration * 2,750,002 -

Samunnati ESOP Welfare Trust

Loans given - 87,262,717

Shares subscribed including premium - 87,262,717

¢) Balances at the end of the year

Particutars As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2013

S G Anil Kumar

Reimbursement of expenses - 54,530

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited

Loans and advances 272,000,000 210,000,000

Interest acerued on loans 5,689,455 10,815,164

Deputation charges receivable 1,659,038 11,431,601

Samunnati ESOP Weffare Trust

Advances given 113,380 113,380

32 Disclosures in respect of non-cancellable operating lease

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for its office premises. These leases expires over various periods are further
renewable at the mutual consent of the Company and the lessor. The lease agreements carry an escalation in the range of 5% to 20% on
the rent payabie at the end of predetermined periods, from the date of entering into the lease agreements,

Operating leases as lessee

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Total lease payments charged off to the statement of profit 8,663,097 5,022,186
and loss (Also, refer note 24)
Disclosures in respect of non-cancellable operating leases
As at As at

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

' The total of future minimum lease payments for each of the folfowing periods:

Payable not later than 1 year 5,219,337 6,397,008
Payable later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 17,436,810 4,545 265
Total 22,656,147 10,842,361

33 Segment reporting
In accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 17- Segment Reporting, the
consolidated financial statements,

company has presented segment inforrnation as part of
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{Al amounts are in Indian Rupees, unfess otherwise stated)

35 Additional disciosure pursuant to the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit

taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 201 B, (as amended by time to time} issued by the RB|

Liabilities side:
1 Loans and advances availed by the non-banking finaneial cempany inclusive of  Amount outstanding
interest accrued thereon but not paid: -
(a) Debentures
-Secured 1.618,610,074
{b) Deferrad credits
(c) Term loans
-Secyred 1,887 415,019
(&) Inter<orporate loans and borrowing
{e) Commercial paper
{f) Cash Credit

30,000,000

Assets side:

2 Break-up of loans and advances
(a) Sscured
(b) Unsecured

3 Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities
() Lease assets inclug ing lease rentals under sundry debtors :
(8) Financial lease
{b} Operating lease
(i) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors :
(a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed Assets
(i) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
{a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b) Leans other than (a) above

4 Break-up of Investments
Current Investments
Quoted
(i} Shares
(z) Equity
(b} Preference
(i} Dabentures and Bonds
(i) Units of mutual funds
(v} Government Securifies
{v) Others (please specify)

Unquoted

(i) Shares

(2) Equity

(b} Preference

(i) Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of mutual funds
{iv) Government Securities
(v} Others {please specify)

Long term investments
Quoted

(i) Shares

(a) Equity

(b) Preference

{iiy Debentures and Bonds
{fii} Units of mutuaf funds
(v} Government Securities
{v) Others (please specify)

Unguoted

(i} Shares

(=) Equity

(b} Preference

() Debentures and Bonags

(ifi) Units of mutual funds

{iv) Government Securities

(v} Investment in securitized assets

Amount overdye

Amount cutstanding

498,542,313
4,073,961,175

30,000,000

180,100,000

40,375,944
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{All amounts are in Ingian Rupees, unjess otherwise Stated}

35 Additional disclosure pursuant to the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financiat Company - Systemically important Non-Deposit
taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 201 B, (as amended by time to time) issued by the RBI

{Continued)

5 Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in 2 {a) and (b) above :
As at 31 March 2019

Category Secured Unsecured Total
1) Related parties
(a) Subsidiaries - 272,000,600 272,000,000
(b) Companies in the s$ame group -
(c.) Other related partias - - -
2) Other than relateq parties 498,542,313 3,801,951175 4,300,503,488
Total 498,542,313 4,073,961,175 4,572,503,488
6 Investor group-wise classification of alf Investments {current ang long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted)
As at 31 March 2019
Category Book Value (Net of Market value/ Break up
Provisions) or fair value or NAY
1) Related Parties
(2) Subsidiaries 180,100,000 180,100,000
{b} Companies in the same group - -
(c.) Other relateg parties - -
2) Other than related parties 70,375,944 70,375,844
Total 250,475,944 250,475,944
As at

[

Other Information
(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties

31 March 2019

74,060,595

(b) Other than related parties
{ii} Net Non—Performing Assefs
(2) Related parties -
{b) Other than refated pariies 56,294,347
(iti) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt -

8 Disciosures relating to Securitization:
During the current year company has sold loans through securitization. The information on direct securitization
activity as of the company as an originator is shown below:

. Year encded Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Totat number of foans assets securitised (Nos) 1,978 411
Book value of loans assets securitised 661,410,321 237,408,113
Book value of loans assets securitised including loan placed as coliateral 734,900,356 263,786,792
Sale consideration received during the year 661,410,321 237,408,113
Interest spread recognised in the statem ent of profit and loss during the year 48,808,633 2,773,020
Credit enhancements provided during the year and ouistanding as at the year end
- Principal subordination 73,490,035 28,378,679
- Cash collatera} 62,616,593 23,181,344
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise Stated)

35 Additional disclosure pursuant to the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company and Deposit taking Com pany (Reserve Bank) Directions, 201 6, {as amended by time to time) issued by the RBI {continued)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

SPVs relating to outstanding securitisation transactions
1. Number of SPvs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions as on the date of the 3 1
balance sheet
2. Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPvs Sponsored as on the date of the 440,085,808 239,440 567
balance sheet
3.Total amount of €xposures retained by the NBFC 1o comply with minimum retention requirement
{MRR")
Off-balance sheet exposures
First loss - -
Cthers - -
On-balance sheet exposures
First foss (cash collateral) 62,618,593 23,181,344
Others (credit enhancement) 73,490,035 26,378,679
Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR
Off-balance sheet exposures
Exposure to own securitizations
First loss - -
Others - -
Exposure to third party securitisations
First loss - -
Others - -
On-balance sheet exposures
Exposure to own securitizations
First loss {cash colfateral) - -
Others - -
Exposure to third party securitisations
First loss - -
Others - -

9 Customer complaints 31 March 2019
i) Ne. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year
ii} No. of complaints received during the year -
iii) No. of complaints redressed during the year -
iv) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year -

10 Information on instances of fraud
There were no instances of fraud reported during the year ended 31 March 204 9 and 31 March 2018.

11 Capital to Risk Asset Ratig ("CRAR’);
As at

31 March 2018

CRAR (percent) 34.28%
CRAR — Tier | Capital (percent) 34.28%
CRAR — Tier Il Capital {percent} 0.00%
Amaunt of subordinated debt raised as Tier-il capital -
Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments -

Particulars
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Samunnati Financial intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees, uniess otherwise stated)

33 Additional disclosyre pursuant to the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank]) Directions, 2016, {as amended by time to time) issued by the RBI {continued):

12 Investments

Particulars 31 March 2019
Value of investments
() Gross value of investments
(&) In India 250,475,944
(b) Outside India
(i) Provisions for depreciation
{2) In India
{b) Outside India
(it} Net value of investments
(a) In india 250,475,944
(b} Outside India
Movement of provisions hald towards depreciation on invesiments
(/) Opening Balance
(ii) Add: Provisions made during the year
(ift) Less: Write-ofwrite-back of excess provisions during the year -
{iv) Closing Batance -

13 Derivatives

The Company has na transaction/ exposure in derivatives including forward rates agreements, interest rate swaps and exchange traded interest
rate derivatives, Further, the Company has no unhedged fareign Currency exposure as on 31 March 2019 (31 March 201s: Nil}

14 Details of financial assets sold to securitisation/reconstruction companies for asset reconstruction

For details relating to securitisation transactions, refer note 35 (8). The Company has not sold financial assets to Reconstruction cempanies for
asset recanstruction in the current ang previous year, '

15 Details of non-performing financial assets purchased or sald
The Company has not purchased or sold any non perferming financial assets during the current and previous year.

16 Asset liability mahagement maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilitias
As at 31 March 2019 #

. Assets Liabiiities
Maturity pattern
Advances Investments Deposits Total Borrowings
Upto 1 month 832,894,024 30,000,000 - 862,894,024 79,083,403
1 -2 months ©40,748, 199 - - 640,749,199 96,508,264
2-3 months 571,967,918 - 500,000 512,467,918 117,011,048
3 -6 months 857,507,819 40,375,544 1,070,000 898,853,763 323,519,829
§ months - 1 year 814,266,797 - 29,014,678 843,281,475 717,471,978
1-3 years 856,810,540 - 53,935,249 810,745,789 653,831,459
3 -5 years 57,457,180 - - 57,457,190 1,249177,180
More than 5 years 850,000 180,100,000 161,500,600 282 450,600 353,100,000
Total 4,572,503,488 250,475,944 186,019,927  5,008,999,359 3,589,704,172
As at 31 March 2018 #
] Assets Liabilities

Maturity pattern Advances Investments Deposits Total Borrowings
Upto 1 manth 149,783,310 20,043,241 4,000,000 173,826,551 58,683,362
1~ 2 months 89,237,116 - - 89,237,116 54,405,032
2 - 3 months 297,053,373 - - 287,053,373 65,212,187
3 -6 months 569,993,817 - 10,159,849 580,153,666 140,747,391
& months - 1 year 445,740,148 - 70,060 445,810,146 356,681,712
1-3vyears 736,805,139 - 50,614,678 787,519,817 893,738,917
3-5 years 124,225,042 - - 124,225,042 -
More than 5 years 1,839,319 180,100,000 - 181,839,318 -
Total 2414 777.262 200,143,241 64844527 2.679,765.030 1.569.468,601
# Note

i} The Company do not have any foreign currency assets or liabilities as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2018.
iy The above bomowings exclude interest accrued and due and interest accrued but not due.
i) The advances comprise of loan principal and does not include interest accrued.

17 Exposure to real estate sector
The Company provides loans which are in accordance with the approved policy of the Company which includes credit assessment of financial
statements and cash flow of the customers. The end use of the loan may be business in the case of business customers. Accordingly, there is no
direct real estate exposure.

18 Exposure to capital market
The company does not have any capital market expasure as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

18 Details of financing of parent company products
This disclosure s not applicable as the Coempany does not have any holding / parent company.

20 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGLY Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded
The Company has not exceeded Single Borrowsr Limit (SGL) nor has exceeded the Group Borrower Limit (GBL).V
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38 Additional disciosure pursuant to the Master Direction .
Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016

21 Unsecured adva nces

22 Registration obtained from other financial reguiators
During the year Company has not obtained any approvals from other financial regulators,

22 Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators

There were no penalties imposed on the Company by R8I or any other regulator,

Related party transactions
Refer note 31 for rejated party transactions.

24

23 Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-De

Y time to time) issued by the RBI (contin

Posit taking
ued):

Refer nofe 12 and 13 for unsecured advances. The Company has not given any advances against the rights, licenses, authorisations, etc.

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Instrument Na_me of the Amount rated Rating assigned Amount rated Rating assigned
rating agency
Nan Convertible Debentures and Market Linked ICRA 95. 4 Crores BBB- {Stable) 47 Crores BB+ (Stable}
Debentures
Non Convertible Debentures CARE 45 Crores BBEB- (Stable) NA NA
Term feans CARE 40 Crores BBEB- (Stable) NA NA
26 Provisions and contingencies (shown under the head expenditure in statement of profit and loss)
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Provision rnade towards income tax
Provision for standardg assefs
Provision towards NPA

Provision for leave benefits

Provision for gratuity
27 Draw down from reserves

Refer note 4 {a), for details relating to draw down from reserves

28

Conecentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs

19,384,379
16,071,313
43,117,772
4,708,710
3,742,410

9,515,202
5,593,331
2,286,663
2,314,922

Particulars

31 March 2019

i. Concentration of advances
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the NBFC

it. Concentration of exposures
Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers
Percentage of exposures to
borrowers/ customers

ii.. Concentration of exposures

Total exposures to top four NPA accounts

iv. Sector-wise NPAs

Sector wise NPA's is not applicable, as the Company is into provide loans and advances fo Agri-

1,250,642,000

27.35%

1,250,642,000

twenty largest borrowers/customers to total exposure of the NBFC on

Related Customers

27.35%

31,135,232

v. Movement of NPAs
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
A Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 1.24% 2.15%
B Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening balance 57,537,756 3,185,011
b) Additions during the year 134 480,580 60,066,963
¢} Reductions dusing the year 86,694,435 454,849
d} Write-off during the year 31,263,356 5,229,32¢
) Closing balance 74,060,595 57,837,795
C Movement of Net NPAg
a) Opening balance 51,625,964 2,866,510
b} Additions during the year 61,362,818 49,244,303
¢) Reductions di uring the year 86,694,435 484 849
d) Closing balance 56,294,347 51,625,964
D Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provision on standard assets)
a) Opening balance 5,911,832 318,501
b) Provisions made during the year 43,117 772 10,822,660
c) Write—off during the year 31,263,356 5,229,329
d} Write-back of excess provisions - -
&) Closing balance 17,766,245 5,911,832
vi. Overseas assets

The Company does net have any overseas assets as at 37 March 2018 and 31 March 2018.
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36 Employee share based plan- ESOP 2015 Scheme

On 08 September 2015 . the Board of Directors approved and the Company adopted the “Employees Stock Opfion Plan 2015” (the “Plan”)

dated 28 January 2017 and 20 December 2017 additional 6,794 and 70,368 shares respectively were added to the Plan, issued and allotted to
Samunnati ESOP Welfare Trust.

The options are to be granted to the eligible emplayees as per the eligibility criteria as determined by the Board of Directors. The share options
vestin a graded manner over a period of 1- 4 years (As at 31 March 2018: 1- 4 years) and are exercisable within 2 months of exercise event,
failing which the options shall lapse.

The Stock compensation cost is computed under the infrinsic value methad and has been recognised on a straight line basis over the vesting
period upto 31 March 2019,

On 21st June 2018, the Board of Directors approved and the Company adopted the " Amendment to the Employees Stock Option Plan 2015"
("The Pian"). The amendment pertains fo vesting period, exercise and grant of options to new joinees., ’
The options to be granted to the eligible employees as per the eligibility criteria as determined by the Board of Directors. The share options
vestin a graded manner over a period of 14 years (As at 31 March 2018: 1- 4 years) and are exercisable within 2 months of exercise event,
failing which the employass shall have to hold on till the next event arises.

No. of options Weighted average No. of options as Weighted average

as at exercise price in ¥ at exercise price in ¥
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 57,041 107.30 24212 131.24
Granted during the year 9,025 1,518.91 32,829 89.64
" Exercised during the year - - - -
Expired! lapsed during the year 180 1,240.00 - -
Options outstanding at the end of the year 65,886 297.70 57,041 107.30

37

Options exercisable as at the end of the period - - -

Contingent liabitities and commitments

Claims against the tompany not acknowledged as debt

During the year, Company has received demand from income Tax Assessing Officer (AD) for an amount of ¥ 38,657,514 pursuant to certain
additions under section 156 of Income Tax Act, 1961. The Company has obtained a stay on collection of demand by paying an amount of #
2,100,000 under dispute. The Company considers the claim to be erroneous and as not payable under the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961,

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Commitments

Capital commitments that are net cancellable - Estimated amount of capital contracts remaining 206,500 -
to be executed

This is the summary of significant policies and other explanatory information
referred to in our report of even date
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